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Planar combines nearly twenty years of experience in flat-panel display fechnology with
end-market expertise to form a unique high-tech company. No longer oriented around a

particular type of technology, Planar builds market-specific value around the best compo-
nents available from manufacturers around the world. In three targeted market segments
and in new growth initiatives underway, Planar combines this technological versatility with
highly collaborative customer relationships to produce unequalled innovations and value.

On Display is this diversification in both markets and technologies — part of a strategy
purposefully designed to connect people with information, customers with solutions and
shareholders with valuable growth opportunities.

ON THE COVER: Planar's Invitium™ medical workstation, introduced in 2002, addresses the growing need for flexible computing power at the patient bedside. Among
the many features specially engineered for the healthcare environment, the downward-shining keyboard light has been enthusiastically endorsed by nurses eager not to
disturb sleeping patients. BACK COVER: Invitium’s innovative cooling ports allow the computer’s heat to escape and also, along with input/output connections tucked
away underneath, prevent fluids from getting in.




Fellow shareholders:

With an optimistic future mapped for the company, and a record of
success, Planar's commitment to its shareholders, its customers and its
employees is prominently On Display.

Throughout fiscal 2002, the impacts of the economic downturn were
most strongly felt in our traditional business, display components used in
a variety of industrial and medical devices. But at the same time we saw
substantial growth in businesses we had targeted as strategic opportunities.
For example, we grew revenues in our desktop monitor business from
$15 million in fiscal 2001 to $55 million in fiscal 2002 while delivering
real profits to the bottom line, and have created & viable business in that
extraordinarily strong growth market.

We also identified an attractive growth opportunity within the medicai
market for flat panels in digital radiological imaging, and we decided to
move quickly to acquire that market’s leader, DOME Imaging Systems of

Waltham, Massachusetts. Planar’s established expertise in supply chain and

“The combined product portfolio is
the industry’s most comprehensive
line of medical display solutions,
truly making Planar the gateway to
patient information. My vision is for
Planar to be On Display in every

hospital around the world.”

channe! management fit with DOME’s product innovations and market
penetration, creating an acquisition that was fairly valued and accretive for
Planar. The transaction and integration have been executed smoothly, and
we've grown the business without missing a beat. The combined product
portfolio is the industry’s most comprehensive line of medical display solu-
tions, truly making Planar the gateway to patient information. My vision is
for Planar to be On Display in every hospital around the world.

Overall, we managed to hold revenues steady with the previous year, even
though the mix of that revenue changed significantly, and we tightly con-
trolled our expenses. And instead of hunkering down and merely waiting for
the economic storm to pass, we faced tough decisions squarely and initiat-
ed fundamental improvements in our operations. We announced the closure
of our Wisconsin LCD factory and moved that production to a uniquely qual-
ified partner in China, improving profitability in that product line. We also
decided to consolidate all EL manufacturing into our plant in Finland, there-
by enabling better gross margins in those products later in fiscal 2003.

These difficult transitions, and the reallocation of research investments
previously targeted at the telecom industry, resulted in a non-recurring
charge of $20 million during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002. | am con-
fident these steps have positioned the company to outperform its peers in

the coming years.




SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

Fiscal Year
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Operations:

Sales

Gross profit

Income (loss) from operations
Net income (loss)

Diluted net income (loss) per share

Balance Sheet:
Working capital
Assets

Long-term liabilities

Shareholders’ equity

2002

$ 205,929
60,330
(3,379)
(3,062)

$ (0.24)

$ 76433
206,471
46,943
124,359

2001

$ 207,952
64,828
22,571
14,537

$ 1.13

$ 59,286
136,200
13,392
96,089

2000

$ 174,551
40,659
{2,160)

543

$ 0.05

$ 50,296
128,175
15,486
73,268

1999

$ 122914
33,175
(3,151)
(5,125)

$ (0.44)

$ 54,378
111,771
16,622
72,744

1998

$ 129,015
40,252
11,827

8,951

$ 0.74

$ 51,520
118,629
4,526
83,378

In fiscal 2002, total non-recurring charges were $22,221. Charges of $1,511 were recorded in cost of sales and $20,710 in non-recurring charges. Excluding the non-recurring charges,
and adjusting for the associated effects in the tax rate and share count, net income would have been $11,598, or $0.84 per fully diluted share. The calculation of net income excluding
the non-recurring charges uses tax expense of $5,682 and diluted shares outstanding of 13,785.

PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

The following table reflects the quarterly high and low closing prices of the company's common stock for
the periods indicated, as reported by The Nasdaq Stock Market. Planar common stock trades under the

symbol “PLNR.”

Fiscal 2002
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

Fiscal 2001
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter

Fourth Quarter

HIGH

$ 21.53
26.25
25.59
20.90

$ 28.88

32.69
28.23
31.50

Low

$ 14.54
17.75
17.30
14.96

$ 14.88
12.44
12.38
16.40

SALES (in thousands)

2002

2 $ 205,929

2001

» $ 207,952

2000

1999
1998

$ 174,551
$ 122,914
$ 129,015

SALES PER EMPLOYEE (in thousands)

2002

1 $ 320

2001

2000
1999
1998

$ 278
$ 192
$ 140
$ 143




Simply put, the market for flat-panel displays is among the world's most attractive business opportunities, now and in the

coming years. Three fundamental forces are driving the accelerating growth in this market. First, flat-panel displays are replac-

ing yesterday's technology, cathode ray tube (CRT) displays, at an increasing rate. According to dispiay industry experts, 2000's

ratio of the dollar value of CRTs to flat panels sold in the world will invert by 2006, crossing 1-for-1 parity sometime in 2002*

Replacement of CRTs, alone, represents an enormous business opportunity. Second, displays are proliferating in a wide array

of innovative devices. Bright, clear electronic displays are the vital interfaces that connect people with information from all

kinds of new, interactive, networked machines — compounding the magnitude of the business opportunity. Third, off-the-shelf

displays are no longer good enough for many of today’s performance requirements. Making the most of modern technology

requires equipment manufacturers to seek the expertise of display specialists ~ Planar foremost among them.

Within the world of opportunity created by these converging market forces,
Transition from CRT to LCD Monitors™  Planar is selectively deploying its unique capabilities in a set of diverse tar-
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get segments, using solutions drawn from the entire range of commercially
viable flat-panel technologies. The spectrum of markets for electronic display
technology is commonly grouped into five classifications: Military, Industrial,

Professional, Commercial, and Consumer. Since closing its military business

in 2001, Planar's activities have been focused on the best opportunities in

7} CRT Monitor Sales [ LCD Monitar Sales

CRT Monitor Units [ LCD Mornitor Units the middle three target segments. *Source: iSuppli/Stanford Resources Inc.
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MEDICAL DISPLAY SOLUTIONS

Planar's expertise ideally suits the specialized needs of the medical
segment of the professional market. With a comprehensive range of medical
display solutions to suit the entire spectrum of healthcare institutions' needs,
Planar uniquely provides the gateway to patient information.

Numerous forces are pushing the healthcare industry toward networked
digital imaging and informatics systems for patient record keeping, both to
save costs and to improve the quality of care. The company estimates these
segments comprise a nearly $300 million market in 2003 with a 15-20 per-
cent annual growth rate.

Through an acquisition completed in 2002, Planar added to its extensive
product line the leading digital radiology display systems from DOME Imaging
Systems, addressing the growing opportunity for filmiess imaging. As the
print ad illustrates, the combined product suite includes a display solution

for every type of healthcare professional.

Just WHAT THE
DOCTOR,
RADIOLOGIST,
ADMINISTRATOR,
NURSE,
ANESTHESIOLOGIST,

ANNOUNCING THE PLANAR/DOME PARTNERSHIP
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Electronic devices used in close proximity to patients require significant performance enhance-

ments. Planar's state-of-the-art patient safety features are backed up by the company’s ongoing

commitment to quality, configuration management and service in this market.




Excluding the effects of non-recurring charges during the year, the
company would have earned net income of $0.84 per fully diluted share in
fiscal 2002. Sales revenue for the year, at $205.9 million, was within one
percent of fiscal 2001’s record-setting performance. The consistent quar-
terly performance generated from continuing operations during the year
reflects our strategic evolution and the effectiveness of our execution.

How did our customers feel about our performance? One of the best
rewards in business comes from receiving an unsolicited compliment, espe-
cially when it's from the CEQ of a customer company. Indeed, the head
of one of our medical customers called me to relay his appreciation for our
professionalism in handling our factory consolidations and its effects on
products and delivery times. Similarly, our vertical organization of the inte-
grated sales teams of Planar and DOME, structured to maximize service to
the companies’ combined healthcare industry customers with what's now an

unmatched suite of products, has met with enthusiastic validation in the

we've developed to manage employee goal plans and results assessments,

automating the annual review process up and down the chain of accounta-
bility. An important exercise we've initiated asks managers if they would hire
again, from the current job market, each of their employees, and to
communicate with them why or why not. Planar is committed to providing
clear, continuous feedback, since it provides the sort of personal growth
opportunities that top-quartile employees seek and serves to produce
ongoing productivity improvements.

Finally, the strength of Planar’s Board of Directors’ practices and corpo-
rate governance policies were On Display in 2002 and are providing a strong
foundation going forward. | am happy to report that our Board had adopted
many good governance measures long before doing so came into vogue.
For example, our Board committees have established charters, the Board
conducts a self assessment annually, every Board meeting includes an

executive session with and without me in attendance, our Board and exec-

marketplace. Without question, our commitment to our strategy of customer
intimacy was On Display in the planning and execution of these major tran-
sitions and throughout the year.

We continue to ask our channel partners in our desktop business why they
like doing business with us, to reaffirm that we are adding value in those
relationships. Citing elements such as our industry-leading Customer-First
Warranty and our continuous focus on total customer satisfaction, we're fre-
quently told it's simply great to do business with Planar. Mission accom-
plished; but we're not stopping there.

The strength of your employee team is most important, and most On
Display, in trying times. So it is that during a year characterized by a signif-
icant rationalization of the size of our workforce, the importance of our strat-
egy built around a top-quartile workforce was confirmed. I'm convinced the
benefits from top-quartile productivity provide a terrific return on the addi-
tional expense incurred to attract and retain such extraordinary employees.

In a year when our commitment to such expenses was continuously
tested, we actually invested more in creating a top-quartile environment and
on employee and leadership development than ever before. The corollary
responsibility the company bears, to maintain a workplace and processes
that exceed top-quartile employees’ expectations, also takes creativity and

continuous improvement. I'm particularly proud of an innovative database

utive compensation philosophies are aligned with shareholder interests and
the Governance Committee of the Board continually examines the adoption
of additional good governance practices.

Yes, in fiscal 2002, Planar's commitment to its shareholders, its
customers and its employees was On Display. The policies and practices
we've institutionalized provide a solid foundation, while the markets
we've targeted and the execution of our strategies continue to produce
commendable results. | can assure you that, like all Planar displays, our
future is bright and vibrant as we embark on fiscal 2003.

Most respectfully,

JEED

Balaji Krishnamurthy
President and Chief Executive Officer
November 15, 2002



RUGGEDIZED INDUSTRIAL DISPLAY SYSTEMS

Equipment manufacturers targeted by the company's industrial business rely on Planar’s unsur-
passed expertise in customizing displays to meet extraordinary performance requirements. ATM dis-
plays like the Planar solution pictured, for example, require ruggedness attributes such as temperature
tolerance, durability, vandal proofing, and brightness and contrast enhancement. Planar engineers are

world leaders in getting the most out of the latest display technology and integrating electronics,

peripheral devices, and software.

Planar optimizes display solutions for customers’ specific needs, applying
two decades of display experience and drawing from the world’s best available
components. Passive LCD and the company’s proprietary EL technology have
traditionally been applied to meet the most rugged performance requirements,
while plasma technology for large applications complements the company’s
growing use of AMLCD for full-color solutions.

Business in the industrial market is closely correlated to macroeconomic
conditions. But the unigueness of Planar’s display solutions means the prof-
itability of ongoing business remains good. The plan for this segment going for-
ward: manage for profitability while preserving capability to capitalize on

future growth opportunities as they emerge.

innovation, supply chain management and, above all, taking excep-
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COMMERCIAL FLAT-PANEL MONITORS | ;
Planar entered the large, high-growth market for commercial flat- ‘
panel monitors just two years ago with a strategy based on product ‘
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tional care of the customer.

Within the $10 billion worldwide market for flat-panel monitors, \ ~
Planar has initially targeted the online reseller channel directed at business and institutional
customers in North America — a market estimated to be $2.6 billion in 2002 and growing at about
22 percent per year.*

By focusing on the online reseller channel, Planar maintains management over a single inventory
control point. This key link in a lean supply chain creates opportunities to capitalize on fluctuations
in materials costs and to introduce cutting-edge products with rapid time-to-market.

Beyond the technology and efficient processes, Planar’s success is mainly due to something old
fashioned: service. Sales reps for the reseller partners know they can count on Planar for attention to
detail and fulfillment of promises. Further, a three-year, free-replacement warranty, unsurpassed by

any other flat-panel monitor competitor, reinforces Planar's commitment to customer satisfaction.
*Source: iSuppli/Stanford Resources Inc.



With attractive market segments in ils sights,

Planar’s execution strategies are formed and

refined around responsiveness to customer needs

and the evolving competitive landscape. The five

strategic elements described on this page and the

next reflect this market-driven discipline.

CUSTOMER INTIMACY

Planar has built its marketing discipline around a concept called cus-
tomer intimacy. Under this strategy, every Planar employee is expected to
fight for the customer’s best interests as if he or she were the customer’s
own employee. This calls for championing the customer’s interests at al! lev-
els internally, and striving to learn so much about the customer’s business
and industry that Planar is counted upon as a trusted, essential partner.

Customer intimacy is most clearly embedied in two of Planar’s leader-
ship dimensions detailed on later pages: fighting for customer success
and driving innovation everywhere. Planar employees in every area of the
company are expected to put customer interests first to overcome any
obstacles that impede customers’ fulfillment, and innovate and improve
processes with a focus on creating new opportunities to help customers
maximize their success. Because, clearly, a customer’s success is also

Planar's success.

CERNER® RELATIONSHIP The development team
at Cerner Corporation sought a highly rugged and
adaptable workstation that could meet the rigorous
requirements of clinical applications. As a leading sup-
plier of management information systems to healthcare
organizations worldwide, Cerner’s software products are
deployed along with specialized hardware platforms.
Planar's product management and engineering team
applied the principles of customer intimacy to under-
stand every nuance of Cerner's needs, becoming a
seamless part of the customer’s product development
team to tailor the invitium™ workstation platform with
a mobile mounting platform for the specific challenges

of point-of-care computing.



TECHNOLOGY VERSATILITY

In the worid of display technology, building the best takes unsurpassed
expertise to know the range of options, but it also takes real versatility to
match the best available option to the particular problem.

Unlike most major companies in the display industry, Planar answers
customer needs without a display technology bias. By drawing from a
global supplier network for all sorts of commercially viable display
components, Planar addresses each challenge uniguely and builds into
each product the very best technology available.

Rather than risking major investments in the research or manufacturing
of specific development-stage technologies, Planar’s resources are invest-
ed in preserving unequalled versatility. Planar's highly experienced team of
engineers stays current on the latest developments from the world’s man-
ufacturers, ensuring that customers get the best available solution and that
the company remains poised to capitalize on the commercialization of any

viable emerging technologies.

GAS PUMP SOLUTIONS From Alaska winters to
Arizona summers, gas pump displays must tolerate the
harshest environmental conditions and keep reliably
and clearly displaying information. For more than a
decade, Planar has enjoyed about 80 percent market
share for extremely rugged LCD digits in gas pumps,
and has grown with the application to include graphic
screens used with credit card transactions. Extending
into color technolegies, Planar is designing products
for next-generation fuel dispensers that feature
farge, vibrant screens at every pump to display driving

directions, traffic reports

and, most importantly for
convenience stores, full-

motion video advertising.




MARKET-DRIVEN APPLICATIONS

Having evolved from a pure technology focus to a disciplined market

focus, Planar specializes in designing and producing technology-rich appli-
cations for specific market opportunities. Increasingly, these applications
are taking the form of products designed to serve as highly configurable
platforms, adaptable to a variety of customer uses.

For example, Planar designed its Invitium medical workstation to be
highly flexible, with numerous options for computing hardware inside and
mounting hardware on the outside, to adapt to healthcare professionals’
unigue needs. Similarly, a single product-development investment was
made in an extremely rugged, high-brightness display platform designed
for use in a variety of outdoor kiosk designs. And the company's new
DOME radiological displays comprise a flexible platform for addressing the
rapidly evolving requirements of medical digital imaging.

By building versatility into platform product designs, Planar leverages

development investments while speeding time-to-market for its customers.
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Customers' diverse needs and modern inventory practices mean the SUPPLYING DELL It’s not enough to produce some of

right product has got to be at the right place at the right time. With an
increasingly complex network of manufacturing partners and vendors,
Planar has developed an important core competency in the seamiess man-

agement of each step along the chain of supply.

Plosve

Versatility among a number of vendors is essential
for meeting customers’ wide-ranging requirements
and is strategically important for diversifying risk.
Planar carefully develops partnerships with firms
that are selected to fit well in both size and style,

such that the result is a cohesive network that

the most highly rated flat-panel monitors available —
channel partners and customers also demand supply
chain management expertise that ensures the right
product gets to the right place at the
right time. Through Dell Computer Corp.,
the leading systems and peripherals
online retailer, the Denver Broncos foot-
ball team equipped each of its stadi-
um’s skyboxes with state-of-the-art,

interactive computer systems, complete

seems to act like one.

The key partnerships in Planar’s supply chain network hail from every
corner of the globe. By capitalizing on access to the world’s best sources
for the world’s best component products, Planar distinguishes itself from

the competition and delivers unparalleled value to customers.

with touchscreen flat-panel monitors
from Planar. A commitment to understanding and ful-
filling customer requirements forms a core competen-
cy for Planar and the basis of the growing relationship

with Dell and other channel partners,




MEDICAL IMAGING Within the large and growing
market opportunity for digital radiology, where X-rays
and other images will be viewed on networked systems
instead of using butky and costly film, various health-

care professionals require different levels of resolution.

Planar's DOME CX™ platform addresses specific
market applications: the C2™ is suited for clini-
cal use, the C3™ features referral-grade image
quality, and the C5™ the world's only five-
megapixel digital grayscale flat-panel display,
exceeds international standards for diagnostic-
quality resolution by providing 3.1 line pairs per

millimeter. CX products feature the industry's

leading image management software, tailored

for the specific chatlenges of digital radiology.

QUANTUM PROJECTS

Building on the strength of its intellectual property and established
businesses, Planar is pursuing a set of initiatives aimed at new, high-
growth, strategic opportunities. The systematic process to identify attractive
prospects, advance them through development stages and launch new
initiatives, called Quantum projects, has been institu-
tionalized in the company's culture.

The first Quantum project to establish success in the
marketplace pursued sales of flat-panel desktop moni-
tors in the commercial market. Launched in early fiscal 2001, this
project boldly pursued opportunities for new players in that rapidly
growing market, and has delivered unquaiified success by profitably
generating $55 million in sales in just its second year.

The company'’s established businesses provide a sound foun-
dation for the pursuit of these Quantum opportunities. Additional projects
are in the works at various stages of development. As with any innovative
ventures, only a few are likely to flourish, but the company’s commitment
to creating viable new business opportunities means those that do could

produce tremendous value.

LARGE-FORMAT PLASMA DISPLAYS A Quantum
project currently making headway involves large-format
plasma displays, customized and ruggedized for such
uses as video conferencing and dynamic signage —
both targeted areas of growth.
Plasma technclogy extends the
company into new dimensions
while leveraging its display and
customer collaboration expert-
ise. Paul Semenza, executive vice president of

research firm iSuppli/Stanford Resources,
states: “Many applications [of plasma
technologyl in public information, industrial,
and medical settings require value-added special pack-
aging and seamiless integration with information sys-
tems. Plasma displays complement Planar's existing
portfolio of technologies, and can open up new markets

requiring large-screen displays.”




CREATING SHAREHOLDER VALUE

Commitment to shareholder value is fundamental in Planar's management philosophy. Long before

current events in the American business community thrust corporate governance issues into the lime-
light, Planar institutionalized clear and effective policies that foster proper alignment of interests.

Planar’s incentive compensation program, for example, reflects management’s stewardship respon-
sibility by placing the parties in a sequential alignment corresponding to their influence over the
results. Income must serve shareholders first, then, to the extent financial performance provides for
a bonus pool, payout to rank-and-file workers, management, and executives occurs in sequence with
each tier receiving its first dollar only if the previous tier has been fully paid to target.

Planar’s executives are also required to establish a level of personal stake in the company, includ-
ing purchasing common stock periodically in the open market at prevailing prices and with their own
maney, intimately feeling the ups and downs along with all the other investors.

Also, Planar's progressive Board of Directors’ governance measures satisfy and even predate the
flurry of regulatory recommendations issued in 2002. These include, for example, six out of seven
members of the board are outside directors; no reciprocal relationships between members exist

through other corporate boards; and the audit committee embodies extensive accounting experience

and its members routinely meet with various company finance personnel together and separately.

FOUNDATIONS FOR SUCCESS

Clearly defined as elements in support of
Planar's mission are internal commitments to a
set of five core company values. Integrity, inno-
vation, quality, success and fun are expected to
be reflected in every aspect of the company's
conduct of business. In addition, five leadership
dimensions guide managers in their approach to
particular challenges. Examples of each are

shown on this page.
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FIGHTING FOR CUSTOMER SUCCESS Customer's
interests are Planar’s interests, even when it means
near-term setbacks. For example, a medical products
customer sought to take in-house the manufacturing
of a custom display module made by Planar, requir-
ing modification of a contractual relationship. With
customer success the clear priority, Planar found a
way to transfer certain process knowledge so the cus-
tomer could build the product. Sales of that product
were lost, but by fighting for customer success the
account management team added to the company's
positive reputation and built trust into relationships

that could lead to further business in the future.

RISKING T WIN Planar employees are encour-
aged to take risks in reaching for extraordinary value
for the company. One program that institutionalizes
the setting of stretch goals, initiated in 2002, pro-
vides incentives for individuals to take on “Planarian
Challenges.” Senior management challenged 345
people from all levels of the company with goal met-
rics that represented performance above and beyond
the call of duty. A little more than a third of those
challenged succeeded, some of whom were then
called out and rewarded for exemplary -accomplish-
ment. In the end, the rewards of all such risking to

win ultimately come back to the company.



‘With an ongoing commitment
to quality, Planar thoroughly
tests each electroluminescent

(EL) display produced. Planar

has been the worldwide leader
in EL technology since the
company was founded in 1983,
and its consolidation of all EL
manufacturing in its facility in
Finland will enable improved

efficiencies going forward.

DRIVING INNOVATION EVERYWHMERE Constant
innovation is the hallmark of a healthy company. One
of Planar’s leadership dimensions calls on each and
every employee to challenge assumptions and "the way
we've always done it" to create significant improve-
ments. An example realized in 2002 occurred on the
manufacturing floor, where process engineers were
finding themselves time bound by instrument calibra-
tion tasks that seemed to have been an unquestioned
part of their traditional role for years. But, innovating
with their work teams, manufacturing operators were
trained for new responsibilities such that engineers
were able to redirect time to create new opportunities

for further improvemenits.

COACHING FOR EMPOWERMENT Leadership
occurs not at a point in time, but is leveraged through
all those touched to establish a lasting legacy. From
this heartfelt concept of CEQ Balaji Krishnamurthy
springs Planar's leadership development program,
named L3 — shorthand for leadership, leverage and
legacy. Initiated in fiscal 2001, the yearlong program
takes 24 developing leaders through quarterly, off-site
sessions that use current business events as context
to discuss Planar’s leadership dimensions as they
relate to strategy development, finance and marketing.
Even under recent expense-reduction pressure, these
investments remain a priority for generating the future

success of the company.

ENCOURAGING THE HEART Planar's leadership
dimensions also recognize the very human nature of
each of the company’s employees. One example of this
occurred in Planar's Espoo, Finland, customer-care
center in the spring of 2002. A major process
improvement project began with each team member
listing individual, personal outcomes desired from the
changes. Even "selfish” benefits were recognized as
valuable attributes that would help sustain improve-
ments. Because many lists included the transfer or
elimination of tasks that took time away from cus-
tomer interaction, the most satisfying part of the job,
progress in this area created a clear benefit for cus-

tomers as well.
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1983t
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02200 Espoo
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BUSINESS

Planar Systems, Inc. (Planar) is a leading developer, manufacturer and marketer of high-performance
electronic display systems. The Company’s products range from display components to stand-alone display
systems built for specific market applications. Technology used in the Company’s products include its
proprietary electroluminescent (EL) flat-panel displays, active matrix liquid crystal displays (AMLCDs), passive
miatrix liquid crystal displays (PMLCD), and plasma display panels (PDPs). The Company manufactures EL and
PMLCD displays and sources other display components from a global network of manufacturers.

The company’s products are used in a wide variety of medical, industrial, and commercial applications. The
Company competes on a global basis with development, manufacturing and marketing operations in both the
United States and Europe. Major customers include Philips, Gilbarco, Datex Chmeda, Siemens, GE Medical,
DataScope, Diebold, Xodak, Allen Bradley, Dell and CDW.

Industry Background

The information display industry is undergoing significant changes as the proliferation of networked devices
is increasing the requirements for the display of text and graphic information. Many devices are located in
challenging environments, such as outdoors, in vehicles, in portable instruments and in healthcare institutions,
requiring specialized displays with high-performance attributes.

Cathode-ray tube (CRT) displays have been the dominant display technology for decades. But CRTs tend to
be bulky, fragile, and require substantial amounts of power to operate. Various flat-screen technologies, with
high performance and greater versatility due to improved form factor, are displacing CRTs.

There are several display technologies currently in development or commercially available, including
various forms of liquid crystal, gas plasma and EL displays. The principal differentiators among flat-panel
display technologies are commercial availability, ruggedness, durability, price, size, color capability, design
flexibility and power consumption.

Electroluminescent—Planar’s proprietary EL display technology is a monochrome, solid-state device with a
thin-film luminescent layer sandwiched between transparent dielectric (insulator) layers and a matrix of row and
column electrodes deposited on a single glass substrate. A circuit board, with control and drive components
mounted within the same area as the viewing area on the glass panel, is connected to the back of the glass
substrate using various interconnect technologies. The result is a flat, compact, reliable and rugged display
device.

Passive Matrix LCD—PMLCDs modulate light (which is either reflected or transmitted) by applying a
voltage to a liquid crystal material placed between two glass plates. These are typically monochrome displays.

Active Matrix LCD—AMLCD screens incorporate the PMLCD technology plus add a transistor at every
pixel location. This allows each pixel to be turned on and off independently which increases the image quality,
response time and side-to-side viewing angle of the display. These are typically color displays.

Plasma—Gas plasma creates a visible image by ionizing a gas contained between two glass plates. The
ionized gas emits an ultra-violet light, which excites phosphors and emit visible light. PDPs generally have
higher power consumption requirements than other display technologies but may provide the most cost-effective
solution for full-color, large format displays.

Other—There is a wide diversity of new technologies constantly under development by a variety of
companies in the display industry with the objective of bringing viable technologies into commercialization.
Some of the more visible efforts include ferroelectric LCDs, electrophoretic displays, organic light emitting
diodes (OLEDs) and various forms of projection displays.
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Planar manufactures EL displays in factories in Oregon and Finland, and has announced its intention to
consolidate all EL manufacturing at its Finland plant. Planar has manufactured PMLCD displays at its Wisconsin
facility, and has announced its intention to close that plant and source PMLCD components from Asian
manufacturers. For all other display technology components, both those currently in wide use and those that may
yet reach commercial viability, Planar maintains a large and versatile network of suppliers.

Markets

The Company is currently serving the following market segments:

Medical—Planar display components are embedded in a wide range of diagnostic and therapeutic
equipment, including defibrillators, anesthesia systems, ventilators, infusion pumps, picture archiving and
communication systems and blood analyzers. But an increasing portion of the Company’s medical business is
comprised of stand-alone display systems, including medically certified monitors and medically certified
workstations. Most of Planar’s medical business is through products that feature the Company’s brand, but it also
supplies display sub-systems and components to OEM’s. The Company believes that its displays provide
superior display quality and reliability for crucial medical applications.

Industrial—Planar displays are used in a wide range of industrial environments, process control equipment,
vehicle control systems, mobile information systems, communications equipment, gas pumps, ticketing machines
and other outdoor kiosk applications. Reliability, ruggedness, temperature tolerance, optical attributes and
custom form factor distinguish the Company’s solutions used in these challenging environments. With its
industrial customers, the Company specializes in collaborative relationships to develop custom designs specific
for particular applications. While the industrial market is closely correlated with overall economic activity, the
Company believes there is significant and ongoing demand for specialized displays in industrial equipment. Prior
to fiscal 2003, the Company had reported separately the Industrial and Transportation segments, which were
combined at the beginning of fiscal 2003.

Commercial—The Company markets a line of Planar-branded monitors through leading online retailers who
primarily serve the business market. Flat-panel monitors provide an alternative to bulky, inefficient CRTs on the
desktop. The Company believes the performance attributes and declining costs of flat-panel displays will
continue to cause a widespread transition from CRT monitors to flat-panels for home and office use.

Products

The Company offers a variety of displays and display systems in a wide range of resolutions, formats,
viewing areas and technologies. These can be classified in two primary product lines:

Flat-Panel Display Components—This product line includes monochrome EL, AMLCD and PMLCD
displays. These are marketed to OEMs for integration into their products.

Value-added Display Solutions—The Company incorporates a variety of display components into systems
and sub-systems that include such attributes as enhanced ruggedness, special mounting systems, peripheral
devices, enhanced product design, local computing capability or special packaging. These products are typically
designed for specific market applications. The Company differentiates its services through the development of
close business relationships with its customers and channel partners.

Research, Development and Product Engineering

The Company believes that a significant level of investment in research, development and product
engineering is required to maintain market leadership. Total expenses were $15.1 million, $15.1 million and
$14.3 million for the fiscal years 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively, for research, development, and product
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engineering. These expenses were partially offset by contract funding from both government agencies (in the
United States and Finland) and private sector companies of $2.2 million, $4.0 million and $3.8 million in fiscal
years 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively. Research and development expenses of the Company are primarily
related to the commercialization of display technologies, new drive architectures and fundamental process
improvements. Product engineering expenses are directly related to the design, prototyping and release to
production of new Company products. Research, development and product engineering expenses consist
primarily of salaries, project materials, outside services, allocation of facility expenses and other costs associated
with the Company’s ongoing efforts to develop new products, processes and enhancements.

Manufacturing

The Company operates EL manufacturing facilities in Oregon and Finland. These facilities produce a wide
range of display types and sizes from 1” x 4” to 12” x 14”. In August 2002, the Company announced its intention
to close its Oregon EL plant during fiscal 2003 and consolidate all EL production in its Finland plant. The
Company believes production volumes and quality necessary to meet forecast demand are achievable from the
single plant. ’

The Company’s facility in Wisconsin has produced PMLCD display components in a wide range of types
and sizes. In July 2002, the Company announced its intention to close its Wisconsin plant during fiscal 2003. The
Company has worked closely with a manufacturing partner in China, transferring process knowledge critical for
the manufacture of wide-temperature PMLCD components.

The Company continues to shift manufacturing and assembly capacities to offshore partners, and many of
its products are now produced entirely by a closely managed network of suppliers. The Company has an
investment in a Taiwan-based company that manufactures stand-alone, flat-panel monitors for Planar, but also
acquires displays and components from a number of other vendors. Planar’s effective management of its global
supply chain is an important competency.

The Company’s manufacturing operations consist of the procurement and inspection of components,
manufacture of the display, final assembly of all components and extensive testing of finished products. The
Company currently procures all of its raw materials from outside suppliers. This includes glass substrates, driver
integrated circuits, electronic circuit assemblies, power supplies and high-density interconnects.

Quality and reliability are emphasized in the design, manufacture and assembly of the Company’s products.
All of the Company’s facilities have active operator training/certification programs and regularly use advanced
statistical process control techniques. The Company’s products undergo thorough quality inspection and testing
throughout the manufacturing process.

The Company believes that worldwide quality standards are increasing and that many customers now expect
vendors to have ISO9001 certification. This certification requires that a company meet a set of criteria,
established by an independent, international quality organization that measures the quality of systems, procedures
and implementation in manufacturing, marketing and development of products and services. All of the
Company’s operating units have received and maintain their ISC9001 certification.

Sales and Marketing

The Company’s products are distributed worldwide primarily through Company-employed sales personnel.
Planar’s vertically integrated sales team for its medical business unit is headquartered in the Company’s Waltham,
Massachusetts office, with additional sales and marketing staff stationed in Beaverton, Oregon; Brussels, Belgium; and
Espoo, Finland. The Company’s industrial business unit manages sales and operations from the Beaverton office, with
additional staff in Espoo also managing a network of independent sales representatives and distributors for certain
European markets. The Company’s commercial business is run from the Beaverton office.
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As of September 27, 2002 and September 28, 2001, the Company’s backlog of domestic and international
orders aggregated approximately $59.9 million and $44.8 million, respectively. As of September 27, 2002, the
Company included in its backlog all accepted contracts or purchase orders and in the prior year only included
those orders which were scheduled for delivery in the next six months. Variations in the magnitude and duration
of contracts received by the Company and customer delivery requirements may result in substantial fluctuations
in backlog from period to period. The Conipany believes its backlog may be of limited utility in predicting future
sales since its commercial monitor business and a growing portion of its medical business operate on a ship-to-
order basis with very little backlog.

Competition

The market for information displays is highly competitive, and the Company expects this to continue. The
Company believes that over time this competition will have the effect of reducing average selling prices of flat-
panel displays. The Company’s ability to maintain gross margins depends, in part, on its ability to increase unit
volumes or increase its value-added contribution to each unit; to provide additional value to its customers
through peripheral devices and system integration and; to reduce material costs in an amount sufficient to
compensate for any decreases in selling prices.

The Company competes with other display manufacturers based upon commercial availability, price,
display performance (e.g., brightness, color capabilities, contrast and viewing angle), size, design flexibility,
power usage, durability, ruggedness and customer service. The Company believes its total quality program, wide
range of product offerings, flexibility, responsiveness, technical support and customer satisfaction programs are
important to the competitive position of the Company.

The principal component manufacturers against which the Company competes include Sharp for EL and
Sharp, Toshiba, Optrex, Seiko-Epson and Hitachi for PMLCDs. In display systems including AMLCD
components sourced from manufacturers, Planar’s value-added products compete against those from Barco,
Totoku and NDS in the medical market; and Sharp, Sony, NEC, Viewsonic, Dell and others in the commercial
market. Customers in the industrial market often are deciding between a display solution from Planar and one of
their own displays developed by their internal engineering department, in addition, other display systems
specialists exist including GDS, Three-Five Systems, White Electronic Designs Corp. and a variety of small,
highly specialized producers.

Intellectual Property

The Company relies on a combination of patents, trade secrets, trademarks, copyrights and other elements of
intellectual property law, nondisclosure agreements and other measures to protect its proprietary rights. The
Company currently owns or has license rights to over 50 patents and several more pending patent applications for
its technologies. The expiration dates of the Company’s existing patents range from 2003 to 2022. Features for
which the Company has and is seeking patent protection include display glass design, materials, elecironics
addressing, control functions and process manufacturing.

Within the agreements under which the Company receives research and development funding from
government agencies, the funding entities retain certain rights with respect to technical data developed by the
Company pursuant to funded research. Generally, these rights restrict the government’s use of the specific data to
governmental purposes, performed either directly or by third parties sub-licensed by the government. Rights
under the Company’s funding agreements with private sector companies vary significantly, with the Company
and the third party each retaining certain intellectual property rights.




Employees

As of September 27, 2002, the Company had 643 employees worldwide, 422 in the United States and 221 in
Europe. Of these, 80 were engaged in marketing and sales, 87 in research, development and product engineering,
77 in finance and administration, and 399 in manufacturing and manufacturing support.

The Company’s future success will depend in a large part upon its ability to continue to attract, retain and
motivate highly skilled and qualified manufacturing, technical, marketing, engineering and management
personnel. The Company’s U.S. employees are not represented by any collective bargaining units and the
Company has never experienced a work stoppage in the U.S. The Company’s Finnish employees are, for the
most part, covered by national union contracts. These contracts are negotiated annually between the various
unions and the Employer’s Union and stipulate benefits, wage rates, wage increases, grievance and termination
procedures and work conditions.

Properties

The Company leases three of its primary manufacturing facilities and various sales offices in the United
States and Europe. The EL manufacturing operation, located in Hillsboro, Oregon, leases 70,000 square feet,
which includes 25,000 square feet of cleanroom. In addition the Company’s assembly operations located in
Beaverton, Oregon, leases 37,000 square feet of custom designed space, including 15,000 square feet of
cleanroom. The European facility, located in Espoo, Finland, is a custom designed facility in which Planar leases
85,000 square feet, including approximately 15,000 square feet of cleanroom.

The Company entered into a new lease in August 2001 for approximately 72,000 square feet of class A
office space in Beaverton, Oregon. The construction of this facility was completed in June 2002 and is now used
for administrative office space, design engineering and associated lab and research and development activities.

During 1994, the Company acquired a 21,000 square foot facility, with approximately 6,000 square feet of
cleanroom, also located in Beaverton, Oregon. This facility is being used for research and development activities.

The Company’s Lake Mills, Wisconsin, PMLCD manufacturing operation includes a 70,000 square foot
facility with approximately 7,500 square feet of cleanroom. This property has been listed for sale.

In April 2002, the Company acquired DOME imaging systems, inc. in Waltham, Massachusetts. DOME
leases approximately 31,000 square feet which is used for sales and administration office space, design
engineering and associated lab and research and development activities and quality testing.

The Company has field sales offices in key U.S. metropolitan areas and five sales offices in Europe. The
offices are located in the Boston, Chicago, New York, Portland, Raleigh, Helsinki, London, Paris, Munich and
Brussels metropolitan areas. Lease commitments for most of these facilities are typically six to twelve months.
The Brussels office has 36 months remaining under the lease commitment. None of these sales offices has
significant leasehold improvements nor are any planned.

The Company believes that its facilities are adequate for its immediate and near-term requirements and does
not anticipate the need for significant additional expansion in the near future.

Shareholders

As of December 11, 2002, there were approximately 3,971 beneficial holders of the 13,932,714 shares of
Common Stock then outstanding.




Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and other
sections of this Report contain statements, including statements regarding the Company’s expectations as to
sales, gross margins, operating expenses, the effective tax rate and earnings per share for fiscal 2003, that are
forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such statements
are based on current expectations, estimates and projections about the Company’s business, management’s
beliefs and assumptions made by management. Words such as “expects”, “anticipates”, “intends”, “plans”,
“believes”, “seeks”, “estimates” and variations of such words and similar expressions are intended to identify
such forward-looking statements. These statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve certain
risks, uncertainties, and assumptions that are difficult to predict. Therefore, actual outcomes and results may
differ materially from what is expressed or forecasted in such forward-looking statements due to numerous
factors including the following: domestic and international business and economic conditions, changes in growth
in the flat panel monitor industry, changes in customer demand or ordering patterns, changes in the competitive
environment including pricing pressures or technological changes, continued success in technological advances,
shortages of manufacturing capacities from our third party partners, final settlement of contractual liabilities,
future production variables impacting excess inventory and other risk factors described below under “Outlook:
Issues and Uncertainties”. The forward-looking statements contained in this Report speak only as of the date on
which they are made, and the Company does not undertake any obligation to update any forward-looking
statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this Report. If the Company does update one or
more forward-looking statements, investors and others should not conclude that the Company will make
additional updates with respect thereto or with respect to other forward-looking statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations is based
upon our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those
related to revenue recognition, bad debts, inventories, warranty obligations, intangible asset valuation and
income taxes. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the
carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. We believe the following critical accounting
policies and the related judgments and estimates affect the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition.  Our policy is to recognize revenue upon shipment of our products to our customers.
The Company defers and recognizes service revenue over the contractual period or as services are rendered. The
Company estimates expected sales returns and records the amount as a reduction of revenue at the time of
shipment. The Company’s policies comply with the guidance provided by Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101,
Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements (SAB 101), issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Judgments are required in evaluating the credit worthiness of our customers. Credit is not extended to customers
and revenue is not recognized until we have determined that the risk of uncollectibility is minimal.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. Our policy is to maintain allowances for estimated losses resulting from
the inability of our customers to make required payments. Credit limits are established through a process of
reviewing the financial history and stability of each customer. Where appropriate, we obtain credit rating reports
and financial statements of the customer when determining or modifying their credit limits. We regularly
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evaluate the collectibility of our trade receivable balances based on a combination of factors. When a customer’s
account balance becomes past due, we initiate dialogue with the customer to determine the cause. If it is
determined that the customer will be unable to meet its financial obligation to us, such as in the case of a
bankruptcy filing, deterioration in the customer’s operating results or financial position or other material events
impacting their business, we record a specific allowance to reduce the related receivable to the amount we expect
to recover given all information presently available.

We also record an allowance for all other customers based on certain other factors including the length of
time the receivables are past due and historical collection experience with customers. We believe our reported
allowances are adequate. If the financial conditions of those customers were to deteriorate, however, resulting in
their inability to make payments, we may need to record additional allowances which would result in additional
general and administrative expenses being recorded for the period in which such determination was made.

Inventory Reserves. The Company is exposed to a number of economic and industry factors that could
result in portions of our inventory becoming either obsolete or in excess of anticipated usage. These factors
include, but are not limited to, technological changes in our markets, our ability to meet changing customer
requirements, competitive pressures in products and prices, and the availability of key components from our
suppliers. Qur policy is to establish inventory reserves when conditions exist that suggest that our inventory may
be in excess of anticipated demand or is obsolete based upon our assumptions about future demand for our
products and market conditions. We regularly evaluate the ability to realize the value of our inventory based on a
combination of factors including the following: historical usage rates, forecasted sales or usage, product end of
life dates, estimated current and future market values and new product introductions. Purchasing requirements
and alternative usage avenues are explored within these processes to mitigate inventory exposure. When
recorded, our reserves are intended to reduce the carrying value of our inventory to its net realizable value. If
actual demand for our products deteriorate or market conditions are less favorable than those that we project,
additional inventory reserves may be required.

Product Warranties. Our products are sold with warranty provisions that require us to remedy deficiencies
in quality or performance of our products over a specified period of time at no cost to our customers. Our policy
is to establish warranty reserves at levels that represent our estimate of the costs that will be incurred to fulfill
those warranty requirements at the time that revenue is recognized. We believe that our recorded liabilities are
adequate to cover our future cost of materials, labor and overhead for the servicing of our products sold through
that date. If actual product failures, or material or service delivery costs differ from our estimates, our warranty
liability would need to be revised accordingly.

Intangible assets. The Company adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statements
of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 141, “Business Combinations” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets” on accounting for business combinations and goodwill as of the beginning of fiscal
year 2002. Accordingly, the Company no longer amortizes goodwill from acquisitions, but continues to amortize
other acquisition-related intangibles and costs.

In conjunction with the implementation of the new accounting rules for goodwill, the Company completed a
goodwill impairment analysis in the second quarter of fiscal year 2002, and found no tmpairment. As required by
the new rules, the Company will perform a similar review annually, or earlier if indicators of potential
impairment exist. The impairment review is based on a discounted cash flow approach that uses estimates of
future market share and revenues and costs for the Company’s segments as well as appropriate discount rates.
The estimates used are consistent with the plans and estimates that the Company uses to manage the underlying
businesses. However, if the Company fails to deliver new products for these groups, if the products fail to gain
expected market acceptance, or if market conditions in the related businesses are unfavorable, revenue and cost
forecasts may not be achieved, and the Company may incur charges for impairment of goodwill.
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For identifiable intangible assets, the Company amortizes the cost over the estimated useful life and assesses
any impairment by estimating the future cash flow from the associated asset in accordance with SFAS No. 121,
“Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of”. If the
estimated undiscounted cash flow related to these assets decreases in the future or the useful life is shorter than
originally estimated, the Company may incur charges for impairment of these assets. The impairment is based on
the estimated discounted cash flow associated with the asset. An impairment could result if the underlying
technology fails to gain market acceptance, the Company fails to deliver new products related to these
technology assets, the products fail to gain expected market acceptance or if market conditions in the related
businesses are unfavorable.

Income Taxes. We have recorded a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred tax assets to the amount
that is more likely than not to be realized. The Company has assessed the valuation allowance based upon our
estimate of future taxable income covering a relatively short time horizon given the volatility in the markets we
serve and our historic operating results. The availability of tax planning strategies to utilize our recorded deferred
tax assets is also considered. If the Company is able to realize the deferred tax assets in an amount in excess of
their reported net amounts, an adjustment to the deferred tax assets would increase earnings in the period such
determination was made. Similarly, if we should determine that we may be unable to realize our net deferred tax
assets to the extent reported, an adjustment to the deferred tax assets would be charged to income in the period
such determination was made.

GENERAL

The Company is a worldwide leader in the development, manufacture and marketing of high performance
electronic display products and systems. Planar began shipping products in 1983 and has experienced revenue
growth based upon the expansion of its product line and market acceptance of its' products for a variety of
applications.

BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

In April 2002, the Company completed the acquisition of DOME imaging systems, inc. (“DOME”). DOME
designs, manufactures and markets computer graphic imaging boards, flat panel displays and software for
original equipment manufacturers and end users in the medical field. As a result of the acquisition, the Company
is able to offer a broader range of medical display solutions. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase and,
accordingly, the operations of DOME have been included in the consolidated financial statements from the date
of acquisition. The total consideration paid was $65.7 million which consisted of cash of $52.2 million, stock
options assumed which were valued at $11.3 million, cash to be paid for stock options of $1.2 million and
closing and related costs of $1.0 million. The Company recorded a non-recurring charge of $2.3 million in the
third quarter of fiscal 2002 for in-process research and development costs. See Note 3 — Business Acquisitions in
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements which is included in Item 8 — Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data in this report.

In December 2000, the Company acquired AllBrite Technologies, Inc., by exchanging 941,823 shares of
common stock of the Company for all of the outstanding capital stock of AllBrite. The acquisition qualified as a
tax-free reorganization and has been accounted for as a pooling of interests under Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 16. Accordingly, the fiscal 2000 consolidated financial statements presented have been restated to
include the combined results of operations, financial position and cash flows of AllBrite as though it had been a
part of the Company.

Prior to the acquisition, AllBrite’s fiscal year ended on December 31. In recording the business

combination, AllBrite’s prior period financial statements have been restated to a year ended September 30, to
conform to the Company’s fiscal year-end and the Company’s presentation.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the percentage of net sales of certain items in the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company. The table and the discussion below should be read in
conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto.

Sept. 27, Sept. 28, Sept. 29,

2002 2001 2000
Sales ... 100.0% 100.0%  100.0%
Costofsales .......cooiiiii i 70.7 68.8 76.7
Grossprofit . ... e 29.3 312 233
Operating expenses:
Research and development, net ................... 6.3 5.3 6.0
Salesand marketing ............ .. ... ... o 7.4 8.1 7.9
General and administrative ...................... 6.6 7.2 7.4
Amortization of intangibles ........... ... ... ..., 0.5 — —
Non-recurring charges .. ........................ 10.1 (0.3) 32
Total operating eXpenses ..............coovnviennenn.n 30.9 20.3 24.5
Income (loss) from operations ........................ (1.6) 10.9 (1.2)
Non-operating income (expense):
Interest,net .. ... .. it ©0.7) 0.2) 0.2)
Foreign exchange, net .................. e 0.1 0.2) 1.2
Other, net . ... —_ _ —
Net non-operating income (EXpense) .. ................. (0.8) (0.4) 1.0
Income (loss) before income taxes .................... (2.4) 10.5 0.2)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes ................... (0.9) 3.5 0.5)
Netincome (JOSS) .. .. viir e eenn, 1.5)% 7.0% 0.3%

Sales

The Company’s sales of $205.9 million in 2002 decreased $2.0 million or 1.0% as compared to sales of
$208.0 .million in 2001. The decrease in sales was principally due to lower sales of $32.1 million and
$18.1 million within the Transportation and Industrial segments, which decreased 59.6% and 26.4%,
respectively. Sales in the Medical segment increased by $7.8 million or 11.0% year over year. Desktop monitor
sales increased by $40.3 million or 277.4% due to higher volumes and also due to increasing the number of
distributors and resellers from the time we entered the market in October 2000. The increase in sales in the
Medical market was due primarily to the acquisition of DOME in the third quarter of fiscal 2002. Sales in the
Industrial market were lower due to the current economic conditions and due to softness across all applications.
The decrease in sales in the Transportation market was primarily due to the exit from the military business and
lower volumes in the vehicle market. Sales related to the exited military businesses were $29.9 miilion in fiscal
2001. The Company’s sales of $208.0 million in 2001 increased $33.4 million or 19.1% as compared to sales of
$174.6 million in 2000. The increase in sales was principally due to higher sales of $9.1 million and $9.4 million
within the Industrial and Medical segments, which increased 15.4% and 15.3% respectively. Sales in the
Transportation segment were relatively flat year over year. Sales volumes in the Medical market increased
primarily in the medical instrument and medical monitor markets. Industrial market sales increased due to higher
volumes to the kiosk markets. The Transportation segment was the market most negatively impacted by the
economic climate due to its dependency on fuel prices and the capital intensive nature of our customers’
products. Sales to military customers in the Transportation segment were $29.9 million in fiscal 2001 which was
a slight increase over fiscal 2000 sales. The Company expects sales for fiscal 2003 to be approximately
$230.0 million, including $70.0 to $80.0 million in desktop monitor sales.
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International sales decreased by 1.6% to $48.6 million in 2002 as compared to $49.4 million recorded in
2001, and increased by 39.8% in 2001 from 2000 sales of $35.4 million. The decrease in international sales was
due primarily to decreased sales in the Industrial market segment. In fiscal 2001, the increase in international
sales was due primarily to increased sales in existing market segments in the Company’s foreign markets,
primarily medical monitors. As a percentage of total sales, international sales decreased to 23.6% in 2002 and
increased to 23.8% in 2001 from 20.3% in 2000. In 2002, the decline in international sales as a percentage of
total sales was mainly attributable to the higher volumes of desktop monitor sales, which almost exclusively go
to US customers. The increase in international sales in 2001 as a percentage of total sales was mainly attributable
to the overall increase in demand for our medical monitor products in Europe. '

Gross Profit

The Company’s gross margin as a percentage of sales decreased to 29.3% in 2002 from 31.2% in 2001. The
decrease was primarily due to $1.5 million of non-recurring charges recorded in 2002 and a higher percentage of
total sales coming from the commercial market, which has lower gross margins. This decrease was partially
offset by higher gross margins on the new digital imaging products acquired in the acquisition of DOME during
the year. The Company’s gross margin as a percentage of sales increased to 31.2% in 2001 from 23.3% in 2000.
The increase was primarily due to $7.4 million of non-recurring charges, which were recorded in 2000 as
compared to a non-recurring gain of $2.2 million in 2001. The Company also realized higher EL margins as
yields improved, higher margins on our commercial AMLCD products due to increased volumes and higher
margins on our CRT products due to higher yields and increased volumes. These increases were partially offset
by lower margins on the LCD products due to lower volumes and lower gross margins on our desktop monitor
products. For 2003, the Company expects gross margins to be in the range of 31.0% to 32.0%.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses, net of $12.9 million increased $1.8 million or 16.5% from
$11.1 million in the prior year. This increase reflects continued investment in the development of new products
and the additional product development expenses related to the DOME acquisition offset by lower personnel
costs and lower contract funding as compared to the prior year. As a percentage of sales, research and
development expenses increased to 6.3% in 2002 from 5.3% in 2001. This increase was primarily due to the
increase in research and development spending. Research and development expenses of $11.1 million increased
$605,000 or 5.8% from $10.5 million in fiscal 2000. This increase was due primarily to increased spending
related to the new photonics program. As a percentage of sales, research and development expenses decreased to
5.3% in 2001 from 6.0% in 2000. This decrease was primarily due to the increase in sales.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expenses decreased $1.6 million or 9.5% to $15.3 million in 2002 from $16.9 million in
2001. This decrease was primarily due to lower commissions on lower sales volumes and the savings related to
the completion of the strategic change to a direct sales force offset by increased headcount and higher advertising
expenses associated with our desktop monitor business. As a percentage of sales, sales and marketing expenses
decreased to 7.4% in 2002 as compared to 8.1% in 2001. Sales and marketing expenses increased $3.0 million or
21.5% to $16.9 million in 2001 from $13.9 million in 2000. This increase was primarily due to the Company’s
strategic decision to reorganize by market segments, which resulted in increasing our investments in marketing.
In addition, higher commissions on higher sales volumes contributed to the increase in sales and marketing
expenses. Commission expenses were also higher due to the Company’s decision to move to a direct sales force,
which resulted in payments to the old distributors and the new direct sales force. As a percentage of sales, sales
and marketing expenses increased to 8.1% in 2001 as compared to 7.9% in 2000.
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Gemneral and Administrative

General and administrative expenses decreased $1.3 million or 8.8% to $13.7 million in 2002 from
$15.0 million in 2001. The decreases in general and administrative expenses were primarily due to lower
personnel costs and lower acquisition costs which were included in the prior year related to the acquisition of
AllBrite Technologies, Inc. offset by increased general and administrative expenses related to the DOME
operations. As a percentage of sales, general and administrative expenses decreased to 6.6% in 2002 from 7.2%
in 2001. General and administrative expenses increased $2.1 million or 16.2% to $15.0 million in 2001 from
$12.9 million in 2000. The increases in general and administrative expenses were primarily due to increased
personnel costs and acquisition costs related to the AllBrite acquisition. As a percentage of sales, general and
administrative expenses decreased to 7.2% in 2001 from 7.4% in 2000.

Amortization of Goodwill and Excess of Fair Market Value of Acquired Net Assets over Purchase Price

In connection with the Company’s acquisition of Standish Industries, Inc. in September 1997, the Company
recorded goodwill on its balance sheet for the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets
acquired. The goodwill was being amortized over a ten-year period resulting in operating expenses of $571,000
per year. During fiscal 2002, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“FAS 142”). FAS 142 changed the accounting for goodwill from an
amortization method to an impairment only approach and accordingly, the Company had no amortization
expense related to goodwill in fiscal 2002.

In connection with the Company’s acquisition of its Finland operation in January 1991, the Company
exchanged Common Stock with a fair market value (based upon an independent valuation) equivalent to the
value of the business acquired. Due to historical losses of this business and the expectation of future losses, the
value of the Common Stock paid was less than the fair market value of the net assets acquired. This required the
Company to write fixed assets down to zero and to record negative goodwill on its balance sheet for the
remaining amount of the excess fair market value of the net assets acquired over the purchase price. Amortization
of this negative goodwill created a positive offset to operating expenses in the amount of $120,000 in fiscal 2001
and $476,000 in fiscal 2000. Negative goodwill was being amortized over a ten-year period and is included in
general and administrative expenses. The amount was fully amortized during fiscal 2001.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

On April 22, 2002, the Company completed the acquisition of DOME. As a result of the purchase price
allocation, $14.6 million was allocated to identifiable intangible assets. The identifiable intangible assets consist
primarily of developed technology and are being amortized over their estimated useful lives. The weighted
average amortization period is approximately four years. During fiscal 2002, the Company recorded amortization
of intangible assets of $1.2 million.

Non-recurring Charges
LCD, EL and Photonics Charges

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company made decisions to transition its PMLCD product
manufacturing from Wisconsin to China, consolidate its EL product manufacturing into a single factory in
Finland and terminate the photonics Quantum programs that were directed at the optical telecom markets. These
actions were intended to align operations with current market conditions and to improve the profitability of its
operations. The Company expects to complete its transition of PMLCD product manufacturing to China by the
end of the first quarter of fiscal 2003. The consolidation of its EL manufacturing facilities into one facility in
Finland is expected to be completed by the end of the third quarter of fiscal 2003. The termination of the
photonics Quantum programs was completed by the end of fiscal 2002. As a result of this decision, the Company
recorded charges of $20.0 million, including charges primarily for impairment of fixed assets, workforce
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reductions of 236 employees, excess inventory and lease cancellation and restoration costs. Cash of $4.1 million
is expected to be used in connection with severance and lease cancellation and restoration costs.

The Company recorded fixed asset impairment charges of $14.3 million as a result of these decisions. The
majority of these charges relate to equipment and machinery and includes estimates for the sales proceeds based
upon prices for similar assets in the used equipment market. There are also amounts included in the impairment
charge for the building and land at the Wisconsin manufacturing facility, which are based upon quoted real estate
market prices. This facility is anticipated to be sold when operations are completed. The Company also recorded
charges of $1.5 miilion related to excess and obsolete inventory, which has been identified as a direct result of
the decision to consolidate facilities or transition the products to offshore manufacturers resulting in the exit of
certain product lines. The Company has also recorded a charge of $1.7 million for lease cancellation and
restoration costs. In addition, the Company has recorded severance charges of $2.4 million. The charges of
$1.5 million related to inventory have been recorded as cost of sales in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002. The remaining charges of $18.5 million have been recorded as
non-recurring charges in the Consolidated Statements of Operations in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002.

CRT Charges

During the third quarter of fiscal 2001, the Company made a decision to close its military CRT business.
This business was a mature business, in which the customers had been converting to flat panel displays over the
past few years. The Company received last time buy orders from customers and shipped all of those orders in the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2001. The Company completed the closing of this business in the first quarter of fiscal
2002. As a result of this decision, the Company recorded non-recurring charges of $1.2 million, including
charges for excess inventory, severance related to workforce reductions of 29 employees and lease cancellation
costs. The inventory charge of $826,000 has been recorded as cost of sales and the remaining charges of
$383,000 for severance charges and lease termination costs have been recorded as non-recurring charges in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. These actions were substantially completed by the end of fiscal 2002.

Military AMLCD Charges

In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2000, the Company made a decision to exit its unprofitable business of
supplying high performance, full-color AMLCD flat panel displays for military avionics. As a result of this
decision, the Company recorded non-recurring charges of $13.0 million, including charges primarily for excess
inventory, recognition of losses on contracts which will not be fulfilled and the expected losses to be incurred in
fulfilling the existing contracts, impairment of fixed assets and workforce reductions of 27 people. The Company
completed the fulfillment of existing contracts during the third quarter of fiscal year 2001. Other actions were
substantially completed by the end of fiscal year. 2001.

The Company recorded $5.2 million of charges related to excess and obsolete inventory, which has been
identified as a direct result of the decision to exit these product lines. The Company also recognized expected
losses of $2.2 million to be incurred during the fulfillment of the existing contracts. Total non-recurring charges
of $7.4 million have been recorded as cost of sales in the Consolidated Statements of Operations in the fourth
quarter of fiscal year 2000. The Company also recorded a charge of $3.7 million for other contractual liabilities,
which relate to losses on contracts which will not be fulfilled, lease termination costs and other contractual
liabilities. The Company also recorded a charge of $1.2 million related to fixed asset impairment. The
impairment loss was the carrying amount of the assets as the assets were disposed of by abandonment when the
contractual commitments were fulfilled. In addition, the Company recorded severance charges of $405,000. Total
charges of $5.4 million have been recorded as non-recurring charges in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2000. The Company recorded $200,000 of estimated bad debt
expense for customers who will not pay their existing accounts receivable balances as a result of the Company’s
decision to exit these product lines. This amount was recorded as general and administrative expense in the
Consolidated Statement of Operations in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2000.
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During the third quarter of fiscal year 2001, the Company determined that $3.3 million of the original
$13.0 million reserve was not required. The original estimates changed due to the unanticipated sale of inventory
which had been fully reserved, the use of inventory to build warranty and replacement units, which was higher
than originally anticipated, and the cancellation of firm purchase commitments all of which were included in the
original inventory reserves. In addition, the estimates changed due to higher than anticipated yields resulting in
lower losses on contracts which were included in the original reserve and the settlement of contractual liabilities
and commitments, which were lower than originally anticipated. These changes in estimates from the original
reserve were not anticipated and resulted in a non-recurring gain in the third quarter of fiscal year 2001 of
$2.2 million, which has been included in cost of sales and an non-recurring gain of $1.1 million, which has been
included in non-recurring charges in the Consolidated Statements of Operations in the third quarter of fiscal
2001.

Flat Candle Charges

In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 1999, the Company decided to sell Planar Flat Candle, Inc., a wholly
owned subsidiary that manufactured and sold backlights for liquid crystal displays. The exit of the Flat Candle
business resulted in a charge of $1.1 million which included inventory charges of $237,000 related to the exit of
certain products, $651,000 related to goodwill, $183,000 related to severance and $66,000 related to other assets
and liabilities. During the second quarter of fiscal year 2000, the Company determined that a buyer could not be
found. As a resuit, the remaining value of the assets was reduced to fair value and a charge of $200,000 was
recorded as non-recurring charges in the Consolidated Statements of Operations in the second quarter of fiscal
year 2000. The assets were disposed of during fiscal year 2000.

During fiscal year 2002, the Company paid cash of $1.1 million related to contractual liabilities, lease
termination costs and severance. The remaining amounts are expected to be paid by the end of fiscal year 2003.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased $21.5 million or 50.8% to $63.7 million in 2002 from $42.3 million in 2001.
As a percentage of sales, operating expenses increased to 30.9% in 2002 from 20.3% in 2001. The increase was
primarily due to non-recurring charges of $20.7 million during fiscal 2002. Operating expenses decreased
$562,000 or 1.3% to $42.3 million in 2001 from $42.8 million in 2000. As a percentage of sales, operating
expenses decreased to 20.3% in 2001 from 24.5% in 2000. For 2003, the Company expects operating expenses to
be approximately 22% of sales.

Non-operating Income and Expense

Non-operating income and expense includes interest income on investments, interest expense and net
foreign currency exchange gain or loss. Net interest expense increased to $1.4 million in 2002 from $376,000 in
2001. This increase was primarily due to increased borrowings related to the acquisition of DOME. Net interest
expense increased to $376,000 in 2001 from $315,000 in 2000. This increase was due to lower cash balances
earning interest offset by lower interest expense on decreased borrowings in 2001.

Foreign currency exchange gains and losses are related to timing differences in the receipt and payment of
funds in various currencies and the conversion of cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable denominated in
foreign currencies to the applicable functional currency. Foreign currency exchange gains and losses amounted to
a loss of $154,000 in 2002, a loss of $444,000 in 2001 and a gain of $2.1 million in 2000. The impact of
fluctuations in the exchange rate subsequent to January 1, 2001 was mitigated by the adoption of the Company’s
hedging strategy.

The Company currently realizes about one-fifth of its revenue outside the United States and expects this to
continue in the future. Additionally, the functional currency of the Company’s foreign subsidiary is the Euro
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which must be translated to U.S. Dollars for consolidation. Beginning January 1, 2001, the Company began
hedging its Euro exposure with foreign exchange forward contracts. The Company believes that this hedging will
mitigate the risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations.

Provision for Income Taxes

The Company recorded a tax benefit of $1.9 million in 2002, a tax provision of $7.2 million in 2001 and a
tax benefit of $933,000 in 2000. For fiscal 2002, the differences between the effective tax rate and the federal
statutory rate was due to state income taxes, permanent differences resulting from purchase accounting
adjustments, research credits, changes in the valuation allowance, federal and state settlements and the effects of
the Company’s foreign tax rates. For fiscal 2001, the differences between the effective tax rate and the federal
statutory tax rate was due to state income taxes, permanent differences resulting from purchase accounting
adjustments, research credits, changes in the valuation allowance and the effects of the Company’s foreign tax
rates. For fiscal 2000, the change in the effective tax rates was due to recognition of book losses in the United
States compared to book income for the Company’s Finland subsidiary. In 2000, the book loss in the United
States was due primarily to the non-recurring charges. In addition, the Company realized a tax benefit related to a
reduction in the valuation allowance related to the net operating loss carry forward. For 2003, the Company
anticipates an effective tax rate of 34%.

Net Income (Loss)

In 2002, the net loss was $3.1 million or $0.24 per diluted share. Net income for 2001 was $14.5 million or
$1.13 per diluted share. In 2000, the net income was $543,000 or $0.05 per diluted share. In 2003, the Company
believes earnings per share will be approximately $1.00 per diluted share.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESQURCES

Net cash provided by operating activities was $23.8 million, $16.4 million and $2.4 million in fiscal years
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The net cash provided by operations in 2002 was due primarily to the non-
recurring charges, depreciation and amortization and the change in accounts receivable offset by the net loss and
the changes in inventories, accounts payable and other current liabilities. The net cash provided by operations in
2001 was due primarily to the net income, depreciation and amortization and the changes in inventories and other
current assets offset by the changes in accounts receivable, other current liabilities and deferred taxes. The net
cash provided by operations in 2000 was due primarily to the non-recurring charges, the increase in other current
liabilities and depreciation and amortization offset by the change in deferred taxes and the other balance sheet
accounts.

Additions to plant and equipment were $5.7 million, $13.0 million and $9.2 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. In 2002, the expenditures for plant and equipment primarily related to additional costs associated
with the ERP implementation, the leasehold improvements in a new office and improvements to the information
systems. In 2001, the ERP systems in the U.S. were replaced. Additions and upgrades were also made to all of
the manufacturing facilities. In 2000, significant additions were made related to the Company’s new EL
manufacturing facility in Hillsboro, OR, which began operating in the third quarter. Additions were also made
related to the Wisconsin and Finland manufacturing facilities. Cash used in the acquisition of DOME was
provided by increased long-term borrowings and the proceeds from the issuance of common stock.

The Company entered into a new credit agreement on April 22, 2002. This agreement replaced the
company’s existing lines of credit. The total borrowings were $40.0 million, which consisted of a revolving loan
of $25.0 million and a term loan of $15.0 million. The total amounts outstanding at September 27, 2002 were
$25.0 million under the revolving loan and $13.1 million under the term loan. The revolving loan is due in April
2004. The term loan is due in quarterly installments of $1.9 million. The loans are secured by substantially all
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assets of the Company. The interest rate can fluctuate quarterly based upon the actual leverage ratio between the
lesser of the Libor rate plus 125 basis points or the prime rate and the greater of the Libor rate plus 325 basis
points or the prime rate plus 50 basis points. The loans also include various financial covenants including a
leverage ratio, a fixed charge coverage ratio, tangible net worth and capital expenditure limits. Borrowings
outstanding under certain equipment financing loans were $11.7 million and $13.7 million as of September 27,
2002 and September 28, 2001, respectively. As the equipment that is used as collateral under these agreements is
sold or disposed of, the amounts outstanding under these loans will be repaid. The Company also entered into a
capital lease during the third quarter for the leasehold improvements in the new offices. The total minimum lease
payments are $1.7 million which are payable over seven years. The Company believes its existing cash and
investments together with cash generated from operations and existing borrowing capabilities will be sufficient to
meet the Company’s working capital requirements for the foreseeable future.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company completed the sale of approximately 463,000 shares of
newly issued common stock in a private placement transaction. The purchase price was $21.60 per share and
resulted in net proceeds of $9.5 million.

QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The table below presents unaudited consolidated financial results for each quarter in the two-year period
ended September 27, 2002. The Company believes that all necessary adjustments have been included to present
fairly the quarterly information when read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements. The
operating results for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for any future
period. .

Three months ended

Sept. 27, June 28, March29; Dec.28, Sept.28, Jume29, March 30, Dec. 29,
2002 2002 2002 2001 2001 2601 2001 2000
(im thousands, except per share amounts)
Sales ............. $ 58,267 $58,020 $48,857 $40,785 $50,647 $52,447 $54,463 $50,395
Gross profit ....... 16,823 17,856 13,199 12,452 15,705 16,885 17,003 15,235
Income (loss) from
operations . . ..... (14,591) 3,552 3,842 3,818 5,278 6,060 5,835 5,398
Net income (loss) . .. (9,520) 1,613 2,405 2,440 3,402 3,956 3,865 3,314
Net income (loss) per
share (diluted) ... $ (0700 $ 011 $ 018 $ 019 $ 026 $ 030 $ 0.30 $ 026
Weighted average
number of
common shares
outstanding
(diluted) ........ 13,551 14,267 13,415 13,106 13,298 13,105 13,086 12,930
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FUTURE ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations”, (“FAS 143”). FAS 143
addresses financial accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived
assets and the associated asset retirement costs. It is required to be adopted for fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2002. The Company has determined that this statement will not have a material impact on its results of
operations or its financial position upon adoption.

The FASB also issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, (“FAS 144”). FAS 144 supercedes Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived
Assets to be Disposed Of”. This new standard also supercedes certain aspects of Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations — Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a
Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions”, (“APB 30”), with
regard to reporting the effects of a disposal of a segment of a business and will require expected future operating
losses from discontinued operations to be reported in the period incurred (rather than on the measurement date as
required by APB 30). In addition, more dispositions will qualify for discontinued operations treatment. This
statement is required to be adopted for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001 and interim periods within
that fiscal year. The Company has determined that this statement will not have a material impact on its results of
operations or its financial position.

In July 2002, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146, “Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities”, (“FAS 146”). FAS 146 requires companies to recognize costs
associated with exit or disposal activities when they are incurred rather than at the date of a commitment to an
exit or disposal plan. Costs covered by the standard include lease termination costs and certain employee
severance costs that are associated with a restructuring, discontinued operation, plant closing, or other exit or
disposal activity. FAS 146 is to be applied prospectively to exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31,
2002 and will impact the Company on a prospective basis after that date.
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Endependent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
Planar Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Planar Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries as
of September 27, 2002 and September 28, 2001, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended September 27, 2002.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Cur responsibility
is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based upon our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Planar Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries as of September 27, 2002 and September 28, 2001,
and the results of their operations, and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
September 27, 2002 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of
accounting for goodwill amortization and impairment in 2002.

/s/ KPMG LLP
KPMG LLP

Portland, Oregon
October 22, 2002
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cashandcashequivalents ............... ... . ... . . i,
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $703 at 2002 and
$1,705 at 2001 (NOte 2) oottt e e
INVentories .. ... .. e e

Total current assets . ... ...t
Property, plant and equipment, net (Note 5) ... ... ... ..o i
Goodwill . ...
Intangible @ssets .. ... it e
Other assets (NOtE 8) . . ..ottt e e e e

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable . ... e
Accrued compensation .. ....... ...
Current portion of long-term debt and capital leases (Note 6) ................
Deferred revenue . ... ...
Other current liabilities (Notes 7 & 8) . ...ttt i

Total current liabilities ........... .. ... . ... .
Long-term debt and capital leases, less current portion (Note 6) ..................
Other long-term liabilities (Note 8) ......... ... . i,

Total iabilities ... ... . ... .
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, authorized 10,000,000 shares, no shares issued
at 2002 or 2000, ...
Common stock, no par value. Authorized 30,000,000 shares; issued 13,601,375
and 12,533, 823 shares at 2002 and 2001, respectively ...................

Retained earnings ... ..... .. ottt e
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (Note 13) . ... oot

Total shareholders’ equity ........ ...t

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Sept. 27, Sept. 28,
2002 2001
(In thousands, except

share data)
$ 37,451 $ 22,007
31,437 34,817
29,305 23,192
13,409 5,989

111,602 86,005
24,669 35,460
49,001 3,428
13,379 —

7,820 11,307
$206,471 $136,200
$ 5,330 $ 8981

6,006 7,096

11,923 2,019
603 478
11,307 8,145
35,169 26,719
39,282 11,686
7,661 1,706
82,112 40,111

117,520 87,803
15,938 19,554
(9,099) (11,268)

124,359 96,089

$206,471 $136,200




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Fiscal year ended
Sept. 27, Sept. 28, Sept. 23,
2062 2001 2000

(In thousands, except per
share antounts)

Al Lo $205,929 $207,952 $174,551
CoStOf SalES ..o\t e e e e 145,599 143,124 133,892
Gross Profit . . ..o e 60,330 64,828 40,659
Operating expenses:
Research and development, net ................................. 12,895 11,065 10,460
Salesand marketing . ...... ... ... i 15,286 16,892 13,902
General and administrative ........... ... . i i e 13,638 14,954 12,867
Amortization of intangible assets .. ......... ... .. il il 1,180 — —
Non-recurring charges (Note 4) . .......... ... i iireon... 20,710 (654) 5,590
Total operating eXpenses ..............c..iiniuninennriin... 63,709 42,257 42,819
Income (loss) from OPErations . ...........c..euienveonneinunennnnnnnn (3,379) 22,571 (2,160)
Non-operating income (expense):
IerESt IMCOIMIE v v vttt et ettt e e s 479 810 859
INtEreSt EXPEISE . vttt ettt et ettt et e e (1,887) (1,186) (1,174)
Foreign exchange, net ........... ...ttt ininiieenann.n. (154) (444) 2,085
Net non-operating income {(EXpense) .. ..........coovuvveneen.. (1,562) (820) 1,770
Income (loss) before income taxes . ...t iiinrnnennnn.nn 4,941) 21,751 (390)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (Note 8) ......... ... cvvienn... (1,879) 7,214 (933)
Netincome (JOSS) .« v vvve ettt et e et $ (3,062) $ 14537 $ 543
Basic net income (lossy per Share . . .......ovvririiie i, $ ©249) % 121 $ 005
Average shares outstanding—basic . .......... ... ... oo oo 12,937 11,980 11,557
Diluted net income (loss) pershare .............cvveireieeenannrannas $ 024 % 113 $ 0.05
Average shares outstanding—diluted ......... ... ... ... ... ... oo 12,937 12,859 12,037

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiscal year ended

Sept. 27,2002  Sept. 28, 2001

Sept. 29, 2000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

$ 14,537

Netincome (I0SS) ..o vttt et $ (3,062) $ 543
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by
operating activities
Depreciation and amortization ..................... ... ... 9,358 7,100 6,092
Amortization of excess market value of acquired net assets over
PUIChASE PIICE . .. vttt e et et e e — (120) 476)
Non-recurring charges ......... ... ... 22,221 (2,006) 13,163
Deferred taxes ..ottt e 1,594 (3,883) (6,240)
Foreign exchange (gain) loss ............ ... . oot 154 444 (2,085)
Tax benefit of stock options exercised . ..................... 2,535 2,060 471
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable ............. ... .. 9,466 (6,167) (9,791)
(Increase) decrease in INVentories . . .............ovunienn..n (7,494) 6,326 (9,089)
(Increase) decrease in other currentassets ................... (2,412) 5,404 (5,113)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable ..................... (3,257) (2,639) 4,324
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensation .. ............... (787) 2,199 846
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue . ............ .. ... .. 125 (624) 59)
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities ................ (4,603) (6,226) 9,826
Net cash provided by operating activities .. ...................... 23,838 16,405 2,412
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ...................... (5,706) (13,005) (9,201)
Investment in a BUSINESS ...ttt (52,216) (1,533) —
Increase in other long-term liabilities ............... . ... ....... 223 310 717
Net sales of short-term InVestments . ............ooveinenrnnans — — 2,010
Net sales (purchases) of long-term investments . .................. 19 351 (950)
Net cash used in investing activities . ................ccovvun..... (57,680) (13,877) (7,424)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments of long-term debt and capital lease obligations ........... (3,922) (2,444) (1,228)
Proceeds from long-termdebt ........ .. .. ... . . il 40,000 -— —
Net proceeds from long-term accounts receivable ................. — — 583
Stockrepurchase ........ ... (554) (1,061) (439)
Net proceeds from issuance of capital stock .................. ... 15,906 6,447 3,501
Net cash provided by financing activities .. ...................... 51,430 2,942 2,417
Effect of exchangerate changes . ................ ... .. ... ..... (2,144) 81 1,147
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . ............. 15,444 5,551 (1,448)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ................. 22,007 16,456 17,904
Cash and cash equivalents atend of period ...................... $ 37,451 $ 22,007 $16,456
Supplemental cash flow disclosure
Cash paid forinterest ........... ... . .. it $ 1,693 $ 1,174 $ 1,172
Cash paid for income taxes . .............. .o, $ 378 $ 3,595 $ 1,166
Acquisition of assets under capital leases .. .................. $ 1,422 $ — $ —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 24,1999 .......

Components of comprehensive loss
(Note 13):

Netincome .......................
Currency translation adjustment . ... ...
Unrealized gain on investments .......

Total comprehensive loss ........
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ...

Tax benefit of stock options exercised

(Note8) ..ot
Stockrepurchase .......................

BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 29,2000 .......

Components of comprehensive income
(Note 13):

Netincome ...........ccovuuinun...
Currency translation adjustment . . ... ..
Unrealized loss on investments .......

Total comprehensive income . . ...
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ...

Tax benefit of stock options exercised

MNote8) ..o,
Stock repurchase . ......................

BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 28,2001 .......

Components of comprehensive income
(Note 13):

Netloss ........coviiina..
Currency translation adjustment . . ... ..
Unrealized loss on investments .......

Total comprehensive income loss . .
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ...

Tax benefit of stock options exercised

(Note8) ...t
Value of stock options assumed in acquisition
(Note3) ...ovi i
Stock repurchase .......................

BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 27,2002 .......

Accumulated
Common Stock Other Total
Retained Comprehensive Shareholders’
Shares Amount Earnings  Income (Loss) Equity
(In thousands, except share amounts)
11,432,056 § 75,747 $ 5,974 $ (8,284) $ 73,437
— — 543 — 543
— — — (4,031) (4,031)
— — — 209 209
(3,279)
419,920 3,078 —_ — 3,078
— 471 — — 471
— — (439) — (439)
11,851,976 79,296 6,078 (12,106) 73,268
— — 14537 — 14,537
— — — 998 998
— — — (160) (160)
15,375
730,172 6,447 — — 6,447
— 2,060 — — 2,060
(48,325) — (1,061) — (1,061)
12,533,823 87.803 19,554 (11,268) 96,089
— —  (3,062) — (3,062)
— — — 2,312 2,312
— — — (143) (143)
— — — — (893)
1,094,498 15,906 — — 15,906
2,535 2,535
— 11,276 — — 11,276
(26,946) — (554) — (554)
13,601,375 $117,520 $15,938 $ (9,099) $124,359

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PLANAR SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THREE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 27, 2002
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PCLICIES
Operations

Planar Systems, Inc. was incorporated on April 27, 1983 and commenced operations in June 1983. Planar
Systems, Inc., and its wholly owned subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”) are engaged in the developing,
manufacturing and marketing of electronic display products and systems. These display products and systems
primarily include electroluminescent displays (EL), liquid crystal displays (PMLCDs) and active matrix liquid
crystal displays (AMLCDs).

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Planar Systems, Inc. and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries, Planar International Ltd., Planar Advance, Inc., AllBrite Technologies, Inc., and
DOME imaging systems, inc. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in
consolidation.

Fiscal year

The Company’s fiscal year ends on the last Friday in September. The last days of fiscal 2002, 2001 and
2000 were September 27, September 28 and September 29, respectively. Due to statutory requirements, Planar
International’s fiscal year-end is September 30. All references to a year in these notes are to the Company’s fiscal
year ended in the period stated which includes the fiscal year results of Planar International.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of sales and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Foreign currency translation

The local currency is the functional currency of the Company’s foreign subsidiary. Assets and liabilities of
the ‘foreign subsidiary are translated into U.S. Dollars at current exchange rates, and sales and expenses are
translated using average rates. Gains and losses from translation of net assets are included in accumulated other
comprehensive loss. Gains and losses from foreign currency transactions are included as a component of non-
operating income (expense).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash deposits in banks and highly liquid instruments with maturities of
three months or less from the time of purchase.

Investments

Debt securities for which the Company does not have the intent or ability to hold to maturity are classified
as available for sale, along with the Company’s investment in equity securities. Securities available for sale are
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carried at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, reported in accumulated other comprehensive
loss. At September 27, 2002 and September 28, 2001, the Company had no investments that qualified as trading
or held to maturity.

As of September 27, 2002 and September 28, 2001, the Company’s investments in debt securities were
classified as cash and cash equivalents. The investments are diversified among high credit quality securities in
accordance with the Company’s investment policy. As of September 27, 2002 and September 28, 2001, all debt
securities were invested in either government securities or commercial paper. These securities have been reported

at their fair market value, which equaled their historical cost. The contractual maturities of the investments as of
September 27, 2002 and September 28, 2001 were less than three months.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market, net of reserves for estimated
inventory obsolescence based upon the Company’s best estimate of future product demand. Inventories consist
of:

2002 2001

Raw materials $13,725 $12,824
Work in progress 2,821 3,652
Finished goods 12,759 6,716

$29,305 $23,192

Included in cost of sales are $1,356, $734 and $2,956 of charges related to inventory obsolescence reserves
for the years ended September 27, 2002, September 28, 2001 and September 29, 2000, respectively. The
Company has inventory reserves of $4,523 and $2,997 as of September 27, 2002 and September 28, 2001,
respectively.

Property, plant and eguipment

Depreciation of equipment is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
generally three to seven years. Capitalized leases and leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line
basis over the lesser of the life of the leases or the estimated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation of the
buildings is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the buildings, estimated to be
39 years.

Other assets

Included in other assets of $7,820 and $11,307 as of September 27, 2002 and September 28, 2001,
respectively, are assets associated with equipment which had not been placed in service as of September 27, 2002
and September 28, 2001 in the amounts of $994 and $4,947, respectively.

Income taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are established for the temporary differences between the financial
reporting basis and the tax basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities at the enacted tax rates expected to be in
effect when such amounts are realized or settled. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when
it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from product sales generally at the time the product is shipped. Service
revenue is deferred and recognized over the contract period or as services are rendered. The Company estimates
expected sales returns and records the amount as a reduction of revenue at the time of shipment.
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Research and development costs

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. The Company periodically enters into research
and development contracts with certain governmental agencies and private sector companies. These contracts
generally provide for reimbursement of costs, Funding from research and development contracts is recognized as
a reduction in operating expenses during the period in which the services are performed and related direct
expenses are incurred, as follows:

. 2002 2001 2000
Research and development expense . .................... $15,143 $15,080 $14,309
Contract funding . . ... .. . i i e (2,248) (4,015 (3,849
Research and development, net ........................ $12,895 $11,065 $10,460

Warranty and extended warranty

The Company provides a warranty for its products and establishes an allowance at the time of sale adequate
to cover costs during the warranty period. The warranty period is generally between 12 and 36 months. This
reserve is included in other current liabilities (Note 7).

Intangible assets

The intangible assets consist primarily of developed technology and are being amortized over their
estimated useful lives. The weighted average amortization period is approximately four years. As of
September 27, 2002, the Company had recorded accumulated amortization of $1,180. The amortization expense
is estimated to be $2,830, $2,731, $2,213, $1,680 and $1,226 in fiscal 2003 through 2007, respectively.

Goodwill

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, (“FAS 142”), FAS 142 changes the accounting for
goodwill from an amortization method to an impairment-only approach. The Company adopted FAS 142 in the
first quarter of fiscal 2002 and therefore, ceased amortization of goodwill recorded in past business
combinations. Based upon the Company’s impairment analysis completed in the second quarter of fiscal 2002,
the Company concluded there was no impairment of goodwill under FAS 142. The Company accounts for
goodwill using an impairment only approach. Goodwill is tested annually and whenever events or circumstances
occur indicating that goodwill may be impaired.

Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or circumstances indicate
costs may not be recoverable. Impairment exists when the carrying value of the asset is greater than the
undiscounted future cash flows expected to be provided by the asset. If impairment exists, the asset is written
down to its fair value. Fair value is determined through quoted market values or through the calculation of the
present value of future cash flows expected to be provided by the asset.

Adpvertising expenses

All advertising expenditures are expensed as incurred and were $777 in fiscal 2002. Prior year's amounts
were not significant.
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Net income (loss) per share

Basic net income (loss) per share was computed using the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during each period. Diluted net income (loss) per share is computed using the weighted average
number of common shares plus dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the period. Incremental
shares of 0, 879,000 and 480,000 for the fiscal years ended September 27, 2002, September 28, 2001 and
September 29, 2000, respectively, were used in the calculations of diluted earnings per share. In years in which a
net loss is incurred, no common stock equivalents are included since they are antidilutive.

Financial instrumemnts

For short-term financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, short-term
debt, accounts payable and accrued compensation, the carrying amount approximates the fair value because of
the immediate short-term nature of those instruments. The fair value of long-term debt is estimated based upon
quoted market prices for similar instruments or by discounting expected cash flows at rates currently available to
the Company for instruments with similar risks and maturities. The differences between the fair values and
carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments at September 27, 2002 and September 28, 2001 were
not material,

Derivative instruments

In January 2001, the Company began using forward exchange contracts to hedge the fluctuations in the
dollar value of its foreign currency accounts receivable and payables related to its Finnish operations. In the years
ended September 27, 2002 and September 28, 2001, the net loss on foreign exchange was $154 and $444,
respectively, which has been recorded as foreign exchange, net in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
After beginning our hedging strategy on January 1, 2001, the net loss on foreign exchange was $70 during fiscat
2001. The forward exchange contracts are settled and renewed on a monthly basis in order to maintain a balance
between the balance sheet exposures and the contract amounts. The amounts recorded in the balance sheet
approximate fair value due to the short duration of the contacts. The Company maintained open contracts of
approximately $7,400 as of September 27, 2002,

Stock-based compensation plans

The Company accounts for its stock-based plans under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”.

Future accounting pronouncements

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations”, (“FAS 143™). FAS 143
addresses financial accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived
assets and the associated asset retirement costs. It is required to be adopted for fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2002. The Company has determined that this statement will not have a material impact on its results of
operations or its financial position. ’ '

The FASB also issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, (“FAS 144”). FAS 144 supercedes Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived
Assets to be Pisposed Of”. This new standard also supercedes certain aspects of Accounting Principles Board
No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations — Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions”, (“APB 307), with regard to
reporting the effects of a disposal of a segment of a business and will require expected future operating losses
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from discontinued operations to be reported in the period incurred (rather than on the measurement date as
required by APB 30). In addition, more dispositions will qualify for discontinued operations treatment. This
statement is required to be adopted for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001 and interim periods within
that fiscal year. The Company has determined that this statement will not have a material impact on its results of
operations or its financial position.

In July 2002, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146, “Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities” (“FAS 1467). FAS 146 requires companies to recognize costs
associated with exit or disposal activities when they are incurred rather than at the date of a commitment to an
exit or disposal plan. Costs covered by the standard include lease termination costs and certain employee
severance costs that are associated with a restructuring, discontinued operation, plant closing, or other exit or
disposal activity. FAS 146 is to be applied prospectively to exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31,
2002 and will impact the Company on a prospective basis after that date.

Reclassification

Certain balances in the 2001 and 2000 financial statements have been reclassified to conform with 2002
presentations. Such reclassifications had no effect on results of operations or retained earnings.

NOTE2 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist principally
of trade receivables and investments. The risk in trade accounts receivable is limited due to the credit worthiness
of the companies comprising the Company’s customer base and their dispersion across many different sectors of
the electronics industry and geographies. The risk in investments is limited due to the credit worthiness of
investees comprising the portfolio, the diversity of the portfolio and relative low risk of municipal securities. At
September 27, 2002, the Company does not believe it had any significant credit risks.

NOTE 3 BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

On April 22, 2002, the Company completed the acquisition of DOME imaging systems, inc. (“DOME”).
DOME designs, manufactures and markets computer graphic imaging boards, flat panel displays and software for
original equipment manufacturers in the medical field and other advanced image processing applications. As a
result of the acquisition, the Company is able to offer a broader range of medical display solutions which
complements our medical product line. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase and, accordingly, the
operations of DOME are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition.

The total consideration paid was as follows:

Cash .. $52,216
Value of stock options assumed . ............. .. ... .. i 11,276
Cashtobe paid for stock options ........... ..o i il 1,232
Closing and related COSIS .. ... ... it 972

Total .. $65,696

The Company assumed options to purchase approximately 621 shares of DOME stock. The options were
valued using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions: expected life of 2 to 4
years; 0% dividend yield; 76.6% volatility and risk free interest rate of 5.1%. The cash to be paid for stock
options relates to certain stock options that were assumed by the Company but which were not converted into a
right to receive the Company’s stock upon exercise. These options were valued based on the number of such
options multiplied by $7.38 per share, which was the purchase price per share in the acquisition.
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The total purchase price of the acquisition was allocated as follows:

Net tangible assets acquired

Identifiable intangible assets

In-process research and development costs
Goodwill

The net tangible assets are comprised of the following:

ACCOUNES TECEIVADLE . . . ittt e e e e e e e e e e 8,361
VN OIS . ottt e e e 6,571
L0 11 115 Q1 0 = 0 A= 1T <1 - U 1,254
TOtal CUITENE ASSELS . o o vttt e et e ettt e e et et e e e 16,690
Property, plant and equipment .. ........... .t e 919
OHREr ASSEES . . ottt e e e 149
TOtal ASSETS . o ottt e e e e e 17,758
Accounts payable .. ... ... ... e 4,648
ACCTUS BXPEHISES . . o oottt ettt et e e e e 3,949
Total current Habilities . . ..ottt e e e e e 8,597
Other long-term labilities ... ... .t i e 31
Total Habilities . . ... ot 8,628
Net tangible assets .. ... ..ot e $ 9,130

The identifiable intangible assets consist primarily of developed technology and are being amortized over
their estimated useful lives. The weighted average amortization period is approximately four years.

The in-process research and development costs of $2,258 were recorded as Non-recurring charges in the
Consolidated Statement of Operations. These in-process research and development costs were written off at the
date of acquisition in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 4, “Applicability
of FASB Statement No. 2 to Business Combinations Accounted for by the Purchase Method.” These costs
primarily relate to the development of a flat panel interface controller which was approximately 60% complete
and is expected to be completed within one year from the date of acquisition. The total estimated costs to
complete were approximately $300. The value was determined by estimating the net cash flows from the sale of
products from 2002 through 2011 resulting from the completion of the project, and discounting the net cash
flows back to their present value using a risk adjusted discount rate of 25%. The estimated net cash flows from
these products were based upon management’s estimates of related revenues, cost of sales, R&D costs, selling
and marketing costs, general and administrative costs and income taxes.

Goodwill of $45,573 was recorded as a result of consideration paid in excess of the fair value of net tangible
and intangible assets acquired, principally due to the fair value of the revenue expected to be derived from future
products and the value of the workforce acquired. Goodwill will not be amortized, but will be reviewed
periodically for potential impairment. No amount of goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax purposes. The
goodwill has been assigned to the medical business unit.

The following table reflects the unaudited combined results of the Company and DOME, as if the merger
had taken place at the beginning of each period presented. The proforma information includes adjustments for the
amortization of the intangible assets, the increased interest expense and the related tax effect of these
adjustments. All periods exclude the $2,258 charge for in-process research and development costs. The proforma
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information does not necessarily reflect the actual results that would have occurred nor is it necessarily indicative
of future results of operations of the combined companies.

Year ended
Sept 27, Sept 28,
2002 2001
Revenue ...... ... . $227,246  $233,360
NEtINCOME . ..ttt ettt e e $ 708 $ 16,130
Basic netincome pershare . ........ ... ..ot $ 005 $ 133
Diluted net income per share .............. .. .............. $ 005 $ 120

In December 2000, the Company acquired AllBrite Technologies, Inc., by exchanging 941,823 shares of
Common Stock of the Company for all of the outstanding capital stock of AllBrite. The acquisition qualified as a
tax-free reorganization and has been accounted for as a pooling of interests under Accounting Principles Board
No. 16. Accordingly, the fiscal 2000 prior period consolidated financial statements presented have been restated
to include the combined results of operations, financial position and cash flows of AllBrite as though it had
always been a part of the Company. Net income in fiscal 2000 increased $192 due to the business combination.

Prior to the acquisition, AllBrite’s fiscal year ended on December 31. In recording the business
combination, AllBrite’s prior period financial statements have been restated to a year ended September 30, to
conform with the Company’s fiscal year-end and the Company’s presentation.

In October 2000, the Company acquired a 12.5% interest in TopVision Technologies, a Taiwanese
manufacturing Company. TopVision manufactures and sells flat panel monitors. The Company paid $1,533 for
its interest in TopVision. This investment has been accounted for using the cost method of accounting. During
the years ended September 27, 2002 and September 28, 2001, the Company purchased $45,623 and $18,499 of
materials from TopVision, respectively.

In July 1999, the Company acquired a 20% interest in dpiX Holding Company LLC, which owns 80.1% of
dpiX LLC.

During the years ended September 27, 2002, September 28, 2001 and, September 29, 2000, the Company
purchased $0, $0 and $11,906 of materials from dpiX LLC.

NOTE 4 NON-RECURRING CHARGES
LCD, EL and Photonics Charges

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company made decisions to transition its PMLCD product
manufacturing from Wisconsin to China, consolidate its EL product manufacturing into a single factory in
Finland and terminate the photonics Quantum programs that were directed at the optical telecom markets. These
actions were intended to align operations with current market conditions and to improve the profitability of its
operations. The Company expects to complete its transition of PMLCD product manufacturing to China by the
end of the first quarter of fiscal 2003. The consolidation of its EL manufacturing facilities into one facility in
Finland is expected to be completed by the end of third quarter of fiscal 2003. The termination of the photonics
Quantum programs was completed by the end of fiscal 2002. As a result of this decision, the Company recorded
charges of $19,963, including charges primarily for impairment of fixed assets, workforce reductions of 236
employees, excess inventory and lease cancellation and restoration costs. Cash of $4,114 is expected to be used
in connection with severance and lease cancellation and restoration costs.

The Company recorded fixed asset impairment charges of $14,338 as a result of these decisions. The

majority of these charges relate to equipment and machinery and included estimates for the sales proceeds based
upon prices for similar assets in the used equipment market. There are also amounts included in the impairment
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charge for the building and land of our Wisconsin manufacturing facility, which are based upon quoted real
estate market prices. This facility is anticipated to be sold when operations are completed. The Company has also
recorded charges of $1,511 related to excess and obsolete inventory, which has been identified as a direct result
of the decision to consolidate facilities or transition the products to offshore manufacturers resulting in the exit of
certain product lines. The Company has also recorded a charge of $1,729 for lease cancellations and restoration.
In addition, the Company has recorded severance charges of $2,385. The charges of $1,511 related to inventory
have been recorded as cost of sales in the Consolidated Statements of Operations in the fourth quarter of fiscal
2002. The remaining charges of $18,452 have been recorded as non-recurring charges in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

CRT Charges

During the third quarter of fiscal 2001, the Company made a decision to close its military CRT business.
This business was a mature business, in which the customers had been converting to flat panel displays over the
past few years. The Company received last time buy orders from customers and shipped all of those orders in the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2001. The Company completed the closing of this business in the first quarter of fiscal
2002. As a result of this decision, the Company recorded non-recurring charges of $1,245 including charges for
excess inventory, severance related to workforce reductions of 29 employees and lease cancellation costs. The
inventory charge of $826 has been recorded as cost of sales and the remaining charges of $383 for severance
charges and lease termination costs have been recorded as non-recurring charges in the Consolidated Statements
of Operations. These actions were substantially completed by the end of fiscal 2002.

Military AMLCD Charges

In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2000, the Company made a decision to exit its unprofitable business of
supplying high performance, full-color AMLCD flat panel displays for military avionics. As a result of this
decision, the Company recorded non-recurring charges of $12,963, including charges primarily for excess
inventory, recognition of losses on contracts which will not be fulfilled and the expected losses to be incurred in
fulfilling the existing contracts, impairment of fixed assets and workforce reductions of 27 people. The Company
completed the fulfillment of existing contracts during the third quarter of fiscal year 2001. Other actions were
substantially completed by the end of fiscal year 2001.

During the third quarter of fiscal year 2001, the Company determined that $3,251 of the original $12,963
reserve was not required. The original estimates changed due to the unanticipated sale of inventory which had
been fully reserved, the use of inventory to build warranty and replacement units, which was higher than
originally anticipated, and the cancellation of firm purchase commitments all of which were included in the
original inventory reserves. In addition, the estimates changed due to higher than anticipated yields resulting in
lower losses on contracts which were included in the original reserve and the settlement of contractual liabilities
and commitments, which were lower than originally anticipated. These changes in estimates from the original
reserve were not anticipated and resulted in a non-recurring gain in the third quarter of fiscal year 2001 of
$2,178, which has been included in cost of sales and a non-recurring gain of $1,073, which has been included in
non-recurring charges in the Consolidated Statements of Operations in the third quarter of fiscal 2001.

The Company recorded $5,151 of charges related to excess and obsolete inventory, which has been identified as a
direct result of the decision to exit these product lines. The Company also recognized expected losses of $2,222 to be
incurred during the fulfillment of the existing contracts. Total non-recurring charges of $7,373 have been recorded as
cost of sales in the Consolidated Statements of Operations in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2000. The Company also
recorded a charge of $3,741 for other contractual liabilities, which relate to losses on contracts which will not be
fulfilled, lease termination costs and other contractual liabilities. The Company also recorded a charge of $1,244
related to fixed asset impairment. The impairment loss was the carrying amount of the assets as the assets were
disposed of by abandonment when the contractual commitments were fulfilled. In addition, the Company recorded
severance charges of $405. Total charges of $5,390 have been recorded as non- recurring charges in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2000. The Company recorded $200 of estimated bad debt
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expense for customers who will not pay their existing accounts receivable balances as a result of the Company’s
decision to exit these product lines. This amount was recorded as general and administrative expense in the
Consolidated Statement of Operations in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2000.

Flat Candle Charges

In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 1999, the Company decided to sell Planar Flat Candle, Inc., a wholly
owned subsidiary that manufactured and sold backlights for liquid crystal displays. The exit of the Flat Candle
business resulted in a charge of $1,137 which included inventory charges of $237 related to the exit of certain
products, $651 related to goodwill, $183 related to severance and $66 related to other assets and liabilities.
During the second quarter of fiscal year 2000, the Company determined that a buyer could not be found. As a
result, the remaining value of the assets was reduced to fair value and a charge of $200 was recorded as non-
recurring charges in the Consolidated Statements of Operations in the second quarter of fiscal year 2000. The
assets were disposed of during fiscal year 2000.

The non-recurring charges incurred affected the Company’s financial position as follows:

Fixed Accounts Accrued Other
Inventories Assets Receivable Compensation Liabilities
Balance as of September 24, 1999 ...... $ — 5 — $— $ 243 $ —
2000 Activity: ‘
Additional charges ............... 4,701 1,444 200 405 6,413
Cashpaidout ................... ' — — — (243) —
Non-cash write-offs . ............. (4,701) (1,444) 200 — —
Balance as of September 29, 2000 ...... — — — 405 6,413
2001 Activity:
Additional charges (adjustments) ... 330 (100) — 328 (2,023
Cashpaidout ................... . — — — (336) (2,8%4)
Non-cash (write-offs) adjustments . . (330) 100 — — (1,150)
Balance as of September 28, 2001 ...... — — — 397 396
Additional charges . .............. 1,511 14,338 — 2,385 1,729
Cashpaidout ................... — - — (703) (385)
Non-cash write-offs .............. (1,511 (14,338) — — —
Balance as of September 27,2002 ...... 5 — $ — $ — $2,079 $ 1,740

During fiscal year 2002, the Company paid cash of $1,088 related to contractual liabilities, lease
terminations costs and severance. The remaining amounts are expected to be paid primarily by the end of fiscal
year 2003.

NOTE 5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment, at cost, consists of:

2002 2001
Land ... . $ 115 $ 115
Buildings .. ... e e 3,731 3,731
Machinery and equipment .............. . .. . 54,244 63,203
Total property, plant and equipment . ...................... 58,090 67,049
Less accumulated depreciation ............ ..o, (33,421) (31,589
Net property, plant and equipment . ........................ $ 24,669 $ 35460




NOTE 6 BORROWINGS
Credit Facility

The Company entered into a new credit agreement on April 22, 2002. This agreement replaced the
Company’s existing lines of credit. The total borrowings were $40,000, which consisted of a revolving loan of
$25,000 and a term loan of $15,000. The revolving loan is due in April 2004. As of September 27, 2002, the
revolving loan balance was $25,000 and the term loan balance was $13,125, The term loan is due in quarterly
installments of $1,875. Amounts of $9,500 and $28,625 are payable in 2003 and 2004, respectively. The loans
are secured by substantially all assets of the Company. As of September 27, 2002, interest rates ranged from
3.88% to 4.75%. The interest rate can fluctuate quarterly based upon the actual leverage ratios between the lesser
of the Libor rate plus 125 basis points or the primer rate and the greater of the Libor rate plus 325 basis points or
the prime rate plus 50 basis points. The loans also include various financial covenants including a leverage ratio,
a fixed charge coverage ratio, tangible net worth and capital expenditure limits. The Company was in compliance
with these covenants as of September 27, 2002.

Long-term debt

The Company has entered into credit facilities with financial institutions to finance equipment purchases.
These loans are secured by the financed equipment and bear interest at an average rate of 6.4%. As of
September 27, 2002 and September 28, 2001, the Company had $11,686 and $13,705 outstanding under these
loans. Aggregate maturities over the next five years are $2,251 in 2003, $2,292 in 2004, $2,443 in 2005, $1,528
in 2006 and $1,417 in 2007. These agreements expire at various dates through December 2008. Covenants under
these agreements are not considered restrictive to normal operations.

Capitalized Leases

During the third quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company entered into a capital lease for the leasehold
improvements in its new offices. Included in property, plant and equipment was $1,422 of assets and
accumulated depreciation of $51 under capitalized leases as of September 27, 2002. Future minimum rental
payments under capital [ease obligations at September 27, 2002 are as follows:

2003 L e $ 246
2004 e 246
2005 L e e e 246
2006 . e 246
2007 . 246
Thereafter . ... ... e 453
Total minimum lease payments . ..........c.uuunittinern e, 1,683
Less amounts representing interest . ... ........o.itiiineinninnnernann.. 289
Present value of net minimum lease payments ............... ...t 1,394
Less CUTTENE POTHION . . oottt et e et e e e e et e e 172
Long-term portion of obligations . .......... ...t $1,222
32




NOTE7 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other current liabilities consist of:

2002 2001
RNy 2 1A (=T 7 O OO $ 2,538 $2,203
Contractual liabilities and 10SSeS . .. ..t v it e e 3,138 1,765
Income taxes payable ... ..... ... e 2,545 —
Other . e 3,086 4,177
Total .o $11,307 88,145
NOTE 8 INCOME TAXES
The components of income (loss) before income taxes consist of the following:
2002 2601 2000
DOMESHIC v oottt e e $(6,852) $19,332 $(3,835)
Boreign . o 1,911 2,419 3445
Total . o e $4,941) $21,751 $ (390)
The following table summarizes the provision for US federal, state and foreign taxes on income:
2002 2001 2000
Current:
Federal ... ... $2422 $2,685 $ 3,500
AL ot e 659 290 472
FOreign . ..o 517 356 1,335
3,598 3,331 5,307
Deferred:
Federal . ... . e 4,820) 3,252 (5,319
Al . e e (620) 629 (704)
Foreign . oo 37 2 (217)
(5477) 3,883 (6,240)
$(1.879) $7,214 § (933)

The differences between the U.S. federal statutory tax rate and the Company’s effective rate are as follows:

2002 200102000
Computed SEAtULOTY TALE . . . ..t et ettt ettt e e et et e e (35.00% 35.0% (34.0)%
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefits ................ ... ... ... .. .. .. .. 4.5) 4.1 4.5)
Effect of foreigntaxrates ... ... . (1.4 0. —
Permanent differences resulting from purchase accounting ............. . ... . ... 16.0 1.0 41.5
Federal and state settlements . . ........... .ttt e e (20.2) — —
Change in valuation allowance .. .......... ... ittt i 20.0 (3.2) (232.8)
Research credits . ... . o i e e (12.7) 2.3) —
Effect of change intax-rates .......... .. .ottt — (1.8) —
Benefit of tax exempt interestearned . ....... .. ... . i 2.1 0.6 (1.8)
Other, Met . Lo e e e 1.9 1.7 (7.6)
B eCtiVe taX LAl . .ot e (38.0)% 33.2% (239.2)%
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The tax effects of temporary differences and carryforwards which gave rise to significant portions of the
deferred tax assets and liabilities as of September 27, 2002 and September 28, 2001 were as follows:

2002 2001

Deferred tax assets:

Inventory valuation reserve $1.640
Other reserves and liabilities 2,211
Non-recurring charges 1,111
Intangibles 152
Capital loss carryforwards 415
Net operating loss carryforwards 1,615
Foreign tax credits 1,627
AMT and General business credits 654

Gross deferred tax assets 9,425
Valuation allowance (425)

Deferred tax assets 9,000
Deferred tax liabilities:
Accumulated depreciation (969)
Intangibles —

Deferred tax liabilities (969)

Net deferred tax asset . $8,031

2002 2001
Other CUITENT @SSEES . . . o\ vttt et et e e et e e e e e e e e e e $10,967 $4,545
L 1137 g2 7Y <1 - O T 3,754 3,730
Other current Habilities . .. ... i i e e (169) (162)
Other long-term liabilities .. ... ... . . (5,863) (82)
Ot o e e $ 8,689 $8,031

During fiscal years 2002, 2001, and 2000 the Company recognized tax benefits of $2,535, $2,060 and $471,
respectively, related to differences between financial and tax reporting of stock option transactions. This
difference was credited to common stock.

During 2002, the Company acquired net deferred tax liabilities of $4,819 related to the purchase of DOME.

The Company has established a valuation allowance for certain deferred tax assets, including net operating
loss and tax credit carryforwards. SFAS No. 109 requires that such a valuation allowance be recorded when it is
more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. For fiscal year 2002, the
valuation reserve increased by $575 and for fiscal 2001, the valuation reserve decreased by $700.

At September 27, 2002 and September 28, 2001, the Company had foreign tax credits of approximately

$2,215 and $1,627, respectively, available to reduce future federal tax. The carryforwards expire at various dates
through 2007. :
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NOTE S SHAREHQOLDERS’ EQUITY
Preferred stock

The Company is authorized to issue up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock at $.01 par value. At
September 27, 2002, no shares of preferred stock have been issued; however, 200,000 shares of Series D Junior
Participating Preferred Stock have been reserved for issuance in connection with the Company’s Shareholder
Rights Plan. Additional series of preferred stock may be designated and the related rights and preferences fixed
by action of the Board of Directors.

Stock options

In fiscal 1994, the Company adopted the 1993 Stock Incentive Plan, which provides for the granting of
options to buy shares of Common Stock. These options are intended to either qualify as “incentive stock options”
under the Internal Revenue Code or “non-qualified stock options” not intended to qualify. Under the 1993 plan,
options issued prior to fiscal 2000 generally become exercisable 25% one year after grant and 6.25% per quarter
thereafter, and expire ten years after grant. Options issued after the beginning of fiscal 2000 generally become
exercisable 25% each six months after grant, and expire 4 years after grant. During fiscal 1997, the Company
adopted the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan with the same provisions and guidelines as the aforementioned 1993 plan.
During fiscal 1999, the Company adopted the 1999 Non Qualified Stock Option Plan with the same provisions
and guidelines as the aforementioned 1993 plan.

The option price under all plans is the fair market value as of the date of the grant. Total shares reserved
under these plans are 4,125,000 shares.

The Company has assumed stock options of 620,782 granted to former employees of DOME. The options
assumed were outside of the Company’s plans, but are administered as if issued under the plans. All of the
assumed options have been adjusted to give effect to the conversion under the terms of the agreement between
the Company and DOME. The assumed options generally are immediately exercisable and expire ten years from
the date of grant. No additional stock options will be granted under any of the assumed plans.

The Company also adopted a 1993 stock option plan for Nonemployee Directors that provides an automatic
annual grant to each outside director of the Company. Total annual grants under this plan cannot exceed
60,000 shares per year.

Information regarding these option plans is as foilows:
Number of Weighted Average

Shares Option Prices
Options outstanding at September 24, 1999 .. ... ... .. ... . . oL 2,222,680 $ 9.04
Granted . ... 512,799 9.80
Exercised ... ... (353,637) 6.26
Canceled . . ... (190,052) 10.60
Options outstanding at September 29,2000 . ........ ... ... . ... ... ... 2,191,790 9.55
Granted . .. ... 615,130 21.59
Exercised . ... o (576,885) 991
Canceled . ... (181,290) 11.96
Options outstanding at September 28, 2001 ... ... . ... ... .. ... ... ... 2,048,745 13.28
Granted . . ... 1,017,289 20.68
BXercised . ... ... (536,499) 6.00
Canceled . . ... .. (62,365) 20.50
Assumed in acquisition of DOME .. ... ... ... ... .. . .. .. 620,782 5.79
Options outstanding at September 27,2002 ... ... .. ... ... ... 3,087,952 15.40
Exercisable at September 27,2002 .. .. ... . 1,841,122
Exercisable at September 28,2001 ...... ... .. . . 1,212,821
Exercisable at September 29,2000 .. ... .. ... .. e 1,227,225




Statement of Financizal Accounting Standards Neo. 123

During 1995, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation” which defines a fair value based method of accounting for an employee stock option or
similar equity instrument. As is permitted under SFAS No. 123, the Company has elected to continue to account
for its stock-based compensation plans under APB Opinion No. 25. The Company has computed, for proforma
disclosure purposes, the value of all options granted during 2002, 2001, and 2000 using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model as prescribed by SFAS No. 123 using the following weighted average assumptions for grants:

2002 2001 2000

RiSK free intereSt FALE . .. . .o\ttt e e et et e e e e e e 4.0% 51% 6.0%
Expecteddividend yield . ... i e — — —
Expected lives (in YEars) ... ... vt e 4.2 4.1 4.2
Expected volatility .. ... ...ttt e 71.8% 76.6% 89.4%

Using the Black-Scholes methodology, the total value of options granted during fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000
was $10,734, $8,736 and $3,091, respectively, which would be amortized on a proforma basis over the vesting
period of the options. The weighted average fair value of options granted during fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000 was
$14.14, $13.25 and $9.80 per share, respectively. If the Company accounted for its stock based compensation
plans in accordance with SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net income and net income per share would approximate
the proforma disclosures below:

2002 2001 2000
As Pro As Pro As Pro
Reported  Forma.  Reported Forma Reported Forma
Netincome (1oSS) ..o, $(3,062) $(7,793) $14,537 $11,399 §$343  §(860)
Net income (loss) per share (diluted) ............ $(024) $060) $ 113 $ 089 $005 $0O7N

The effects of applying SFAS No. 123 in this proforma disclosure are not indicative of future amounts.
SFAS No. 123 does not apply to awards prior to January 1, 1995, and additional awards are anticipated in future
vears.

The following table summarizes information about stock options and grants outstanding at September 27,
2002: '

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average of Weighted Numberof Weighted
Number Remaining  Average Shares Average
Qutstanding Contractual Exercise Exercisable Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices at 9/27/02 Life Price at 9/27/62 Price
$043-850.53 .. 169,413 4.2 $ 0.50 169,413 $ 0.50
$4.25-86.06 .. ... ... s 30,013 6.6 5.91 14,388 5.74
$6.38-59.50 ... ... 552,561 59 7.28 454,817 7.43
$9.88-$14.8L ... ..ot 638,965 6.1 12.75 630,181 12.75
$14.90-82226 . ... .. 1,191,696 4.3 19.19 400,121 18.92
$22.50-831.50 .. 505,304 5.7 24.53 172,202 25.88
$043-831.50 . ..o e 3,087,952 5.9 $1545 1,841,122 $12.82

Performance restricted stock

The 1996 Stock Incentive Plan provides for the issuance of restricted stock to employees. The shares issued
vest over a two to five year period, based on the attainment of specified performance measures or the passage of
time. In the event the performance measures are not met, any unvested shares would vest at the end of ten years.
No restricted stock has been issued to employees within the past three years.
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Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In fiscal 1995, the Company adopted the 1994 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, which provides that eligible
employees may contribute, through payroll deductions, up to 10% of their earnings toward the purchase of the
Company’s Common Stock at 85 percent of the fair market value at specific dates. At September 27, 2002,
169,908 shares remain available for purchase through the plan and there were 621 employees eligible to
participate in the plan, of which 165 or 27%, were participants. Employees purchased 65,915 shares, at an
average price of $13.05 per share during the year. Total receipts to the Company were $860. Since the plan is
noncompensatory, no charges to operations have been recorded. The fair value of the purchase rights is estimated
on the first day of the offering period using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The fair value of the shares
issued in fiscal 2002 was $7.08 per share. In fiscal 2002, the risk free interest rate was 2.3%, the expected
dividend yield was 0%, the expected lives were 0.5 years, and the expected volatility was 71.8%.

Shareholders Rights Plan

In February 1996, the Board of Directors approved a shareholder rights plan and declared a dividend of one
preferred share purchase right for each outstanding common share. Each right represents the right to purchase
one hundredth of a share of Preferred Stock, at an exercise price of $60.00, subject to adjustment. The rights are
only exercisable ten days after a person or group acquires, or commences a tender or exchange offer to acquire,
beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the Company’s outstanding common stock. Subject to the terms of the
shareholder rights plan and the discretion of the Board of Directors, each right would entitle the holder to
purchase one share of Common Stock of the Company for each right at one-half of the then-current price. The
rights expire in February 2006, but may be redeemed by action of the Board of Directors prior to that time at $.01
per right.

NOTE 10 COMMITMENTS

Most of the Company’s office and manufacturing facilities are subject to long-term operating leases. In
addition, regional sales offices and automobiles are subject to leases with terms ranging from one to twelve
months.

At September 28, 2002, the minimum annual operating lease payments are:

Fiscal year
ending in September

2003 L $ 3,679
200 L 3,706
2005 e 3,420
2000 .. 2,831
200 2,873
B 0 =) =T i =) o 8,416

$24,925

Total rent expense was $2,817, $2,667 and $2,438, and for the years ended September 27, 2002,
September 28, 2001, and September 29, 2000, respectively.

NOTE 11 BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company is organized based upon the products and services that it offers. Under this organizational
structure, the Company operates in four main segments: Industrial, Medical, Transportation and Desktop
Monitors. Industrial and Medical derive revenue primarily through the development, marketing and selling of
electroluminescent displays, liquid crystal displays and color active matrix liquid crystal displays. Transportation
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presently derives revenue from the development, marketing and selling of electroluminescent displays, liquid
crystal displays and color active matrix liquid crystal displays. In the past, Transportation also derived revenues
from the development, marketing and selling of high performance taut shadow mask cathode ray tubes, which the
Company discontinued in fiscal 2001. Desktop monitors derives revenue primarily through the marketing of
color active matrix liquid crystal displays that are sold through distributors to end users.

The information provided below is obtained from internal information that is provided to the Company’s
chief operating decision-maker for the purpose of corporate management. Research and development expenses
for future products are allocated to the segments based upon a percentage of budgeted sales. Depreciation
expense, interest expense, interest income, other non-operating items and income taxes by segment are not
included in the internal information provided to the chief operating decision-maker and are therefore not
presented below. Inter-segment sales are not material and are included in net sales to external customers below.
Prior year’s amounts have been reclassified to conform to the fiscal year 2002 presentations.

2002 2001 2000

Net sales to external customers (by segment):
Medical . ... . $ 78,968 § 71,135 $ 61,690
Industrial ... ... e 50,365 68,462 59,345
Transportation .. ..... ...t e 21,750 53,821 53,516
DesktOp . oo 54,846 14,534 —_—
Total sales . ... $205,929 $207,952 $174,551
Net sales to external customers (by geography):
United States . ... ..ttt e $157,367 $158,515 $139,196
Other . .. 48,562 49,437 35,355
Totalsales ......... ...t $205,929 $207,952 $174,551
Operating income (loss):
Medical .. ... $ 12,149 § 4,132 $ 2816
Industrial .. ... (1,272) 4,497 4,115
Transportation ... ...... ...t 6,013 12,840 4,072
eSO . o o e e 1,952 (904) —
Non-recurring Charges ..........ouvueitne i neeenn. (22,221) 2,006 (13,163)
Total operating income (10SS) . . ... .ottt e $ (3379) $ 22,571 $ (2,160)

Certain facility, information systems and other expenses are incurred by Corporate and allocated to the
segments based on a percentage of budgeted sales. The assets and related capital expenditures of the Company
are not reported by segment. Property, plant and equipment by geography is as follows:

2002 2001
U e $20,371 $29,900
Burope ... 4,298 5,560
T Otal ASSEES . . vttt e $24,669 $35,460

One customer within the Desktop Monitor segment comprised 19% of total consolidated sales for the year
ended September 27, 2002.

NOTE 12 401(K) AND PROFIT SHARING

All employees in North America over 21 years of age are eligible to participate immediately in the 401(k)
savings and profit sharing plan. Employees can contribute up to 15% of their gross pay subject to statutory

38



maximums. The Company matches 55% of the first 10% of each participating employee’s contributions, also
subject to statutory maximums. Employer contributions vest immediately. The 401(k) plan expense amounted to
$758, $965 and $1,063, for the years ended September 27, 2002, September 28, 2001 and September 29, 2000,
respectively.

NOTE 13 COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Comprehensive income (loss) and its components have no impact on the Company’s net income (loss) or
total shareholders’ equity. Comprehensive income (loss) and its components were as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Net income (loss) (net of tax of $(1,879), $7,214, and $(933), respectively) .. .... $(3,062) $14,537 $ 543
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Currency translation adjustment (net of tax of $1,417, $492, and $(1,646),
TESPECIVELY) « o et 2,312 998  (4,031)
Unrealized gain (loss) on available for sale securities (net of tax of $(88),
$(79), and $85, respectively) .. ... e (143) (160} 209
Total comprehensive income (10SS) ... . oot e vt it $ (893) $15,375 $(3,279)
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